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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, it is
my pleasure to present to you the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Despite the challenging business environment brought by COVID-19,
we are pleased to announce that we have signed two new lease
agreements to further expand our business in Central (The entire 10th
and 11th Floor of New World Tower I, 16-18 Queen’s Road Central)
and Tsim Sha Tsui (The whole 16th Floor, The Peninsula Office
Tower, 18 Middle Road). With the prime strategic locations of the
new premises, we are able to enlarge the capacity of our medical
aesthetic service centre and further capture potential clients in order
to strengthen the CosMax and VITAE brands as well as our overall
business.

Although the business environment is expected to continue to be
challenging, we remain optimistic about the prospects of the industry
given the rising demand for medical aesthetic services. The COVID-19
pandemic has hit many sectors very hard, and the medical aesthetic
industry has been no exception. The Group has closed all of its
treatment centres for the periods from 10 April to 7 May 2020, 15
July to 28 August 2020 and 10 December 2020 to 17 February 2021
subsequent to the Government’s COVID-19 disease prevention
arrangements. Although our major services and treatments were not
associated with those procedures defined to be provided by beauty
parlours under the Amendment Regulation, we highly value both our
staff and customers, so therefore their health and safety would be
assigned the highest priority. Hence, we have made a tough decision
to close all of our treatment centres during these periods.
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
ETEHRES

Over the past decade, we have devoted considerable efforts in
creating medical innovations and reinforcing our industry-leading
position. We have expanded the variety of our products, introduced
new treatment devices as well as provided a wide range of products
and premium treatment services to our customers. Our efforts have
enabled us to build a solid foundation for our business to face the
present and future challenges.

We are also actively exploring other potential opportunities to open
additional medical aesthetic service centres and retail stores of
skincare products in FY 2022, showing our determination to raise our
profile by different means and solidify our leading position in the
market.

Acknowledgements

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all shareholders and our
business partners, suppliers and customers for their unconditional
support to the Group. My heartfelt appreciation also goes to our
responsive management and professional colleagues for their
dedication and valuable contributions to the Group in the past year.

Lai Ka Yee Gigi
Chairlady & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRD

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group’s revenue decreased by HK$47.6 million, or 27.0%, to
HK$128.9 million when compared with that of the year ended 31
March 2020 (“Previous Year”). The decline was mainly due to the
impacts of COVID-19, which had brought unprecedented
interruptions to the Group’s business. Social distancing measures
and the compulsory closure of all beauty parlours in Hong Kong for
certain periods as implemented by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “Hong Kong Government”) had
dealt a further blow to the Group’s business operation. As a result,
loss for the Year Under Review amounted to approximately HK$12.7
million (Previous Year: net profit of approximately HK$13.6 million).

The Group is presently operating three medical aesthetic centres at
prime locations in Causeway Bay, Central District and Tsim Sha Tsui
under brand of “CosMax”. The Causeway Bay centre is in a duplex
unit with an overall area of 12,156 sq ft and has 30 treatment rooms.
While Tsim Sha Tsui centre and Central centre occupy 6,050 sq ft
and 3,092 sq ft, respectively and they have up to 17 and 9 treatment
rooms. Leveraging the strategic locations, the centres have allowed
the Group to attract a wide range of customers and effectively
strengthen its customer base. The Group continuously keeps abreast
of latest technologies to ensure it is able to provide top-notch quality
services for the customers. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had over
140 treatment devices enabling it to provide a diversified range of
treatment procedures. The devices and procedures have all been
clinically evaluated by doctors before being adopted to give
customers safe and superb quality experience.

With a new collective standard of “Healthy beauty”, the Group has
unveiled a new beauty brand “VITAE by CosMax”. Mrs. Gigi Ma,
founder of the brand, has emphasised the principle of “Inner health
realises external beauty” and established the brand, initiating a new
category in the medical aesthetic industry. The philosophy of the
brand is to balance beauty, maintain a perfect balance between
beauty and health, and emanate beauty from within. It has thus
inspired the concept of VITAE — Wellness Beauty medical aesthetic
services. The Group believes that the new concept of the brand will
be the new market trend given the increasing awareness of health,
hence VITAE by CosMax has been launched in all CosMax centres to
allow more customers to experience the new brand.

e CI=
HE021F3ANBULEFE(LEFE] -
AEBRKRSEREE2020F3A31HILFE
([EF])RLA7T6EEBLEK27.0%E128.9
BEAT BB EEZEARTEHAZEA
REBEBKERTRIMABNTE - FER5
TR BT ([ BB BT ) BREA A 2 B RS HE
RREHRHEHIBEEAESOmMEXAER - £
REBEREEETHE—SITE - At - 0EE
FEBBOAI12TEEEL(EZF  FH
136BEBT) °

AEEBAIERIEE - RIRERAPENE
LHER 4SS = A [CosMax | A& MR i B &3
Bt o AFEEPLR/ENER - HHI0M
PEE  BRGUMWEEAEI216FFTR £
REED B £6,050 F 75 R % 3,092 F 75 IR &
SR RAIRFAORIS RIS 17 E &M
PEE ZERLAEUNESMER ML ASE
Egemks|BEZENINEFPRERZEEARR
o AEERERUSHEE  BREMDAE
FPRHETARSEZLE RS - K202143 4318 -
REBEHEBBIB1408ERRE  TRHEZT
LB ERRR T - RERETIEE ARKTMH
BATUERA  ARPREZEZMEENE
%ﬁ o

HRESUTRENE] A2FR—BE K
SEBER2HED2HESR D EIVITAE by
CosMax | ° Fah8 Al A B2 M &Z = —HE
[RTEMREER - BABLIMERER ] MRA| - &K
R eZmbE - BB ERITERMA T HA9E
o o ZMmEE ST HEEFEE - EREREE
REREMTETERBAMIMNE L EBY
% o IR A T AR Bt VITAE — Wellness Beauty
QEXRGES - BEERESRIES  A5H
HERBEFIBRSEXNATMISBE - Bit
VITAE by CosMax 2. A FT A CosMaxH L H
EEZEFRHITME -

2021 3R / EPHEREEFR AT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Business Review (Continued)

Besides, the Group provides quality skin care products that
complement its treatments for customers to achieve optimum results.
The Group has launched a new skin care product line XOVE, the fruit
of hard work by the responsible Swiss skin care research team. It has
also exclusively developed the “White Truffles W-TruComplex” which
can reach deep into the bottom layer of the skin and combine with
muscle cells to provide natural nutrients, activate regeneration and
repair of cells, and strengthen the barrier and restore youthfulness of
the skin. In the view of the growing trend of online shopping, the
Group has stepped up its efforts to promote e-commerce and
established XOVE’s e-shop online in July 2020. Meanwhile, the Group
launched an online platform to sell XOVE products to the PRC
customers through T-mall (X %), Xiaohongshu (/]» 4T &) and Mini
program (/N2FF7) in a bid to expand the customer base.

Recently, the Group has also been exploring potential opportunities
to further penetrate the market by opening new medical aesthetic
service centres and retail stores of skin care products in Hong Kong
and the PRC during FY2022, showing that it is well-prepared to
expand its customer base.

Financial Review

Revenue

Our revenue is mainly derived from the provision of medical aesthetic
services, which include treatment services, consultation services, as
well as the prescription and dispensing of medical products. In
addition, we sell skin care products to our clients.

Our Group’s revenue amounted to approximately HK$128.9 million
for the Year Under Review, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$47.6 million or 27.0% as compared with HK$176.5 million for the
Previous Year. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic which brought unprecedented interruptions to
the Group’s business. The social distancing measures and the
compulsory closure of all beauty parlour in Hong Kong for certain
periods as implemented by the Hong Kong Government further result
in Group’s inability to conduct business. These factors adversely
affected the Group’s financial performance during the Year Under
Review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EBENWRDN

Financial Review (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

Set forth below is a breakdown of our total revenue during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020:

By 75 ol (&)

Wz (&)

HZE2021F %2020 3 A31 HILFERLEI
=AAMAEIINT

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MALEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FHET Bk T AL
Treatment services BERE 108,417 84.1 156,601 88.7
Skin care products EBEm 19,915 15.5 18,636 10.6
Medical consultation services BE R R A AR S 31 0.0 138 0.1
Prescription and dispensing B AEmE T Ml EE

of medical products 508 0.4 1,154 0.6
Total revenue s 128,871 100.0 176,529 100.0

() Revenue from treatment services (i) REERREHKZE

(1)

During the Year Under Review, most of our revenue was
derived from treatment services. Revenue from treatment
services amounted to approximately HK$108.4 million for the
Year Under Review and approximately HK$156.6 million for the
Previous Year, representing 84.1% and 88.7% of our total
revenue, respectively.

Revenue from sale of skin care products

Skin care products include cleanser, toner, serum, moisturiser,
eye care products, ultraviolet (UV) protection products and
masks under the new skin care product line XOVE, which
backed up by scientific research team in Switzerland.

Revenue from sale of skin care products amounted to
approximately HK$19.9 million for the Year Under Review and
approximately HK$18.6 million for the Previous Year,
representing 15.5% and 10.6% of our total revenue,
respectively. The increase of approximately HK$1.3 million, or
7.0%, was primarily due to the active promotional campaigns
mounted on various social media platforms for skin care
products and the launch of online platform to sell XOVE product
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(i)

REEFE  ZMAITH K= REE
BB - NEBEFEREFT  KREER
RFEH W EDRIH A108.4E EF TR
#9156.6 BBATT * D Al B I U
84.1% }2.88.7% °

REHEEFERNKE
EEEmBREAR TRTEREIEANN
EEEMZAY| [XOVE] - BEEIBERA
an - BREUK  RRER - RIBR - IREBE
BEMm - KIMRUV) B EE R MHER -

REBFEREAF  KAHEESERD
MW ZE DRI A19.9B BB T NHI18.6
BEBT  2MERMBKERN155%
510.6%° & 18 £ £1.38 & & 7T =k
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AR B LA LT SHE [XOVE] K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

Financial Review (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(iii) Revenue from consultation services
First-time clients are required to attend medical consultation
with our doctors, during which our doctors will perform
examination as well as assess and/or make a diagnosis on the
client’s skin conditions and recommend suitable treatment
services accordingly based on their specific conditions, needs
and concerns. After the first visit, follow up consultation
sessions will also be provided when appropriate to keep track
of clients’ conditions.

Revenue from consultation services amounted to approximately
HK$31,000 for the Year Under Review and approximately
HK$138,000 for the Previous Year.

(iv) Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical
products
Based on clients’ skin conditions, their specific needs and
requirements, our doctors may prescribe medication and/or
recommend certain skin care products which are dispensed at
our medical aesthetic centres.

Revenue from prescription and dispensing of medical products
amounted to approximately HK$0.5 million for the Year Under
Review and approximately HK$1.2 million for the Previous Year,
representing 0.4% and 0.6% of our total revenue, respectively.

Other income

Other income amounted to approximately HK$12.8 million for the
Year Under Review and HK$4.1 million for the Previous Year. The
increase of approximately HK$8.7 million or 212.2% was primarily
due to approximately HK$9.6 million government subsidies received
in relation to Employment Support Scheme and other subsidy
scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund during the Year Under Review.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Cost of inventories and consumables amounted to approximately
HK$13.0 million for the Year Under Review and HK$17.5 million for
the Previous Year, representing 10.1% and 9.9% of the total revenue,
respectively.

10 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021

B 75 [El R ()
3 ()

(iii)

(iv)

R B IR B W
MEPAMBRMNBLETERKR
BB S EETRE R H R RR
BEFPHBEMR FERBIEER
HEERREL2E - WIREEZREE
MBERRY - BAEHAE  BATHE
EEERRMRERND  LERTHE
FeyEs -

REBFEEREF  REBAREHK
59 Bl #9 731,000 7% T K #9 138,000 7%
7TE °

REBREMEL REENKE

REEFHNEMRL HEREME
Ko BRFMmELTREERbEWES
R/ IEBERMBEERTOARED
ETHEEEM -

REBEFEREF  REBFREMES
KB EN Y E DRI R0.5 BEE TR
1.2HE8BTT - DRIERFIAEREE0.4%
120.6% -

HpA

REBEFERESF - HRAD BN S12.88
BETRAIBEET  BENA/BTEER
TTE2122%  DEZHROEFEAKRE
BTRME] B RMRNRES THHEME
BE BB A6 BEET

FEREFERBEA

REBFERESF FERBERKASRIL
B1IB0EBBTRITSEABB T DRMEE
U E5E 10.1% 12.9.9% ©



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by approximately HK$10.9 million, or 13.3%,
from approximately HK$81.8 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$70.9 million for the Year Under Review. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in commission paid
to doctors and front-line staff whose incentive scheme tied to various
key performance indicators such as number of treatment conducted
and number of package sold. As a result of decrease in total revenue
and sales of packages during the Year Under Review, commission
paid to doctors and front-line staff were reduced.

Property rentals and related expenses

Property rentals and related expenses and depreciation of right-of-
use assets decreased by approximately HK$1.3 million, or 5.8%,
from approximately HK$22.5 million for the Previous Year to HK$21.2
million for the Year Under Review. The decrease was primarily due to
rental concession offered by the landlord during the periods of
mandatory closure as required by the Hong Kong Government.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation expenses in relation to property, plant and equipment
increased by approximately HK$0.7 million, or 5.7%, from
approximately HK$12.3 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$13.0 million for the Year Under Review.

Other expenses
Set forth below is a breakdown of our other expenses during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020:

By 75 ol (&)

BT
BTIRAMREFNLYSI.8EES TR 4109
BEBTHIB3%ECBEFENLNT709E &
BT BB ETEARMBERAFELS
AR - LSBT 8 R THEREE
RELERHBESTREERIDIEZEN - A
REBFENERRKRARBEERD - BB
ERAIKETIHESRD

MERSRIEBERX
MERS LEBEIARERAEEERERE
FRHN2R25BABEBTRLH13EE AT
58%EMEFEMN212BE BT - BRI
FEARBEBEMN E e bR E R P 02
ETRHASERMK -

M- BERZETE

ME BEREBITEATAEFNN1237
BTN TEEELES T ERBFE
H13.0BEBEET °

HAtrpix
B ZE 2021 F £ 202063 A31 HIEFE R HA
P2 BRSNS

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000 % change

FHET FHAT BHLLEH
Credit card commission ERRA: 3,611 3,997 9.7)
Advertising and promotion expenses  E4 RiEER Y 12,303 5116 140.5
Repair and maintenance fees WERREE 2,496 2,655 (6.0)
Transfer of listing expenses iRk T - 9 (100.0)
Professional fees EEEH 3,613 2,480 45.7
Donations B 29 29 0.0
Consultancy fees =l 6,917 5,607 23.4
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - HKE K N/A
plant and equipment, net REEE 2 BEFE 269 - T EA
Others HAth 8,738 8,771 (0.4)
37,976 28,664 32.5

2021 3R/ SHHEREEER AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Financial Review (Continued)

Other expenses (Continued)

Other expenses increased by approximately HK$9.3 million from
approximately HK$28.7 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$38.0 million for the Year Under Review. The increase was
primarily attributable to higher advertising expenses for the launch of
new promotions and active promotional campaigns mounted on
various social media platforms for “XOVE” product lines in Hong Kong
and China.

Finance costs

Finance cost decreased by approximately HK$0.4 million from
approximately HK$2.2 million for the Previous Year to approximately
HK$1.8 million for Year Under Review.

Income tax credit/(expense)

Income tax expense amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million for
the Previous Year and income tax credit of approximately HK$3.6
million for the Year Under Review. The tax credit was primarily
attributable to the loss incurred for the Year Under Review.

Loss for the year
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$12.7 million for the Year Under Review.

Dividends

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the Year Under Review (Previous Year: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$161.8 million as at 31 March 2021. Our
working capital, represented by net current assets was HK$83.7
million. Based on our steady cash inflows from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, we have adequate liquidity
and financial resources to meet our working capital requirements and
to fund our budgeted expansion plans in the next financial year.

As at 31 March 2021, most of our cash and bank balances was
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, United State Dollar and Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

Cash Flow Analysis

The tables below sets forth the information as extracted from the
consolidated statement of cash flows of our Group for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020:

nBEe MNAFERE)
REREBIW

TRETH B A& BB E 2021 F 2 2020
FIANALFENGERERERNER -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 % change
Fh T EAHE

Net cash flows from operating activities #& & EEFFSIR G R &8 %58 24,535 63,505 (61.4)

Net cash flows from investing activities & /EEFTSIRE R E ) F 5 52,197 26,122 99.8
Net cash flows used in a financing BVEEE TR SR E/FRE

activity (14,650) (15,372) 4.7)
Net increase in cash and cash ReERBeSEYIEINFEE

equivalents 62,082 74,255 (16.4)

Our cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$147.6 million
as at 31 March 2021, as compared to approximately HK$85.6 million
as at 31 March 2020. The increase was due to the decrease in non-
pledged time deposits with original maturity of more than three
months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2021, our net cash flows from operating
activities was approximately HK$24.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$39.0 million as compared with the year ended
31 March 2020. The decrease was primarily attributable to the
COVID-19 pandemic which bought unprecedent interruptions to the
Group’s business, which lower the cash flow from operating activities.

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities
For the year ended 31 March 2021, our net cash flows from investing
activities was approximately HK$52.2 million, which was primarily
attributable to decrease in non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of more than three months when acquired.

Net Cash Flows Used In Financing Activities

For the year ended 31 March 2021, our net cash flows used in a
financing activity was approximately HK$14.7 million, represented
principal portion of lease payments during the Year Under Review in
relation to operating lease arrangements entered into by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Lease Liabilities
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had lease liabilities of approximately
HK$42.5 million (2020: approximately HK$48.5 million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, our Group had no capital commitments in
respect of the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment
(2020: approximately HK$0.5 million).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year Under Review, the Group acquired items of plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$8.3 million (2020:
approximately HK$8.9 million).

Indebtedness

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

As at 31 March 2021, our Group had no outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2020: Nil).

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees
As at 31 March 2021, our Group had no significant contingent
liabilities and guarantees (2020: Nil).

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2021, there was no charge on the assets of our
Group except for the time deposits of approximately HK$57.3 million
(2020: approximately HK$55.5 million) pledged for banking facilities
as security for credit card instalments programmes.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 March 2021, our Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings (2020: Nil).

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Group carries out its business mainly in Hong Kong and most of
its transactions are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. Our Group did
not experience any material impact or difficulties in liquidity on its
operations resulting from the fluctuation in exchange rate, and no
hedging transaction or forward contract arrangement was made by
the Group during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Indebtedness (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Our Group has no significant interest rate risk. Our Group currently
does not have any specific policies in place to manage interest rate
risk and has not entered into any interest rate swap transactions to
mitigate interest rate risk, but will closely monitor related risk in the
future.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures, and Future Plans for Material Investments or
Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant investments
held by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the reporting period. Save as
disclosed in this report, there is no plan authorised by the Board for
other material investments or additions of capital assets as at the
date of this report.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2021, our Group has a total of 195 employees (2020:
171). Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration, of our Group
were approximately HK$70.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: approximately HK$81.8 million). Remuneration is
determined with reference to factors such as comparable market
salaries and work performance, time commitment and responsibilities
of each individual. Employees are provided with relevant in-house
and/or external training from time to time. In addition to a basic salary,
year-end bonuses are offered to employees who performed
outstandingly to attract and retain eligible employees to contribute to
our Group.

Prospects

Subsequent to the Government’s disease prevention arrangements
to counter the COVID-19 pandemic on beauty parlours during the
Year Under Review, the Group closed all of its treatment centres for
the periods from 10 April to 7 May 2020, 15 July to 28 August 2020
and 10 December 2020 to 17 February 2021. Although it's major
services and treatments were not associated with those procedures
defined to be provided by beauty parlours under the Amendment
Regulation, all of its medical aesthetic centres were nonetheless
closed as the safety and health of its staff and the public is of
paramount importance to the Group. As the pandemic outbreak has
seriously dampened consumer sentiment, it is anticipated that the
Group will suffer from the recent challenging business environment
until the spread of COVID-19 is successfully contained.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Prospects (Continued)

Subsequent to the Year Under Review, the Group has entered into
two lease agreements to further expand its businesses. Locations of
the new premises are 1) the entire 10th (as VITAE centre) and 11th
Floor (as CosMax centre) of New World Tower I, 16-18 Queen’s
Road Central and 2) the entire 16th Floor of The Peninsula Office
Tower, 18 Middle Road, Tsim Sha Tsui (as VITAE centre). The lease
agreements increase the total service floor area of the Group by more
than 98% to over 42,000 sq ft. As such, the Group can enlarge its
medical aesthetic service centre capacity at prime locations in Hong
Kong to meet the increased market demand for medical aesthetic
services, and strengthen the market shares of CosMax and VITAE.

Meanwhile, the Group believes that its proactive and responsive
management strategy makes it resilient in the face of drastic changes.
During the Year Under Review, the Group has invested in various
operations and supporting systems so as to improve the back-end
support. This investment allows the management to revamp the
current operational flow, which could benefit both the employees and
experience of customers. The Group expects that such reform would
maximise the return to shareholders in the post-pandemic era.
Nevertheless, sales of products and services and utilisation rate of
medical aesthetic centres’ will fluctuate, depending on the recovery of
the overall business environment. Therefore, the Group would
continue its stringent cost-control measures and evaluate its financial
position.

In addition, after the launch of the VITAE brand in all CosMax centres,
the Group will continue to seize opportunities arising from rising
consciousness of people on health and strategically expand its beauty
brand “VITAE by CosMax”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Prospects (Continued)

Furthermore, the Group will continue to expand its distribution
channels by selling XOVE products online to PRC customers. It is
expected that more online platforms such as T-mall and Douyin (£} )
will participate in selling the Group’s products during the second half
of FY2022 in order to boost the overall sales of their products.
Moreover, starting in mid-October 2020, the Group has dispatched
about 50 free media articles for the brand, mainly highlighting the skin
care and beauty experiences of Ms Gigi Ma and the unique
ingredients of XOVE white truffles, which has further promoted the
new XOVE skin care product line and enhanced the brand awareness.
The Group has also been exploring potential opportunities to open
skin care product retail stores in Hong Kong and the PRC,
demonstrating that it is well-equipped to expand its retail products
business.

In light of the relaxation of social distancing measures once Hong
Kong’s pandemic situation has become more effectively controlled,
the business performance of the Group has been in line with
management’s expectations, and has recorded significant year-on-
year revenue growth from April to mid-June in FY2022. The Group’s
investment in various operations and supporting systems has
substantially enhanced its operational efficiency and facilitates its
expansion plan. Looking ahead, the Group is fully committed to
offering top-notch non-surgical aesthetic services by actively paying
close attention to the latest technologies and procuring the best
devices to enrich its services and to enhance the overall treatment
experience of customers. At the same time, it continues to explore
potential expansion opportunities so as to strengthen the Group’s
leading position in the industry, strive to maximise profitability, and
generate optimal returns for shareholders.
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Executive Director

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Z37) (with former name Lai Chi, Gigi (32%)),
aged 49, is an executive Director, chairlady of the Board and chief
executive officer. She is also the chairlady of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. She is
responsible for the overall management, branding and strategic
planning, marketing and development of the Group. Ms. LAl Ka Yee
Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) joined the Group in July 2009 and was appointed
as a Director on 6 July 2016, re-designated as an executive Director
and appointed as chairlady of the Board and the chief executive
officer on 19 December 2016. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Before founding the Group, Mrs. Gigi Ma was active in the fim and
television entertainment industry between 1985 and 2008. She
withdrew from the film and television entertainment industry in late
2008 and has since devoted her full effort to the development of the
business in the medical aesthetic service industry.

Mr. HO, Tsz Leung Lincoln ({1 %), aged 45, joined the Group in
July 2019 as the chief brand officer in which he has been responsible
for formulating and leading the Group’s brand strategies, as well as
overseeing the Group’s marketing and sales operations. Mr. Ho was
appointed as an executive Director on 22 April 2020 and promoted to
Chief Operation Officer effective at May 2020. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Ho worked in the role of art/creative director in a number
of advertising firms, namely DDB Worldwide, Leo Burnett etc., whose
clients included a world renowned international fast-food corporation,
personal skin care corporations, an automobile corporation and a
major transport corporation in Hong Kong. He has also contributed in
the film industry that earned him a nomination in The 24th Hong Kong
Film Awards in 2005.
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Mr. Ho spent a decade at Neo Derm Group Ltd, a medical aesthetics
company, from 2006 to 2016 with his last position as marketing
communication director, and then worked in Airport Authority Hong
Kong in 2016 as assistant general manager in the retail and
advertising department. He rejoined Neo Derm Group Ltd from 2017
to 2019 with his last position as digital marketing director. He had
also worked for BTL Hong Kong Limited as regional marketing
director before joining the Group.

Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Arts in Design from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2002, as well as a Diploma in Design Studies
in 1999 from the same university.

Dr. LAM Ping Yan (%% &), 69, joined the Group in July 2020 as an
executive Director. He had been serving as a public officer for 34
years from 1978 to 2012. He commenced his career as a public
officer when he joined at the then Medical and Health Department
(now known as Department of Health) of Hong Kong in 1978 as a
Medical and Health Officer before being promoted to Senior Medical
and Health Officer in 1984, junior directorate officer (Principal Medical
Officer) of the Department of Health in 1989. He was appointed as
Chief Port Health Officer and Community Physician in 1993, Assistant
Director of Health in 1994, Deputy Director of Health in 1996 and
Director of Health in 2003. During Dr. Lam’s tenure as a public officer,
he had been involved in the prevention and control of severe acute
respiratory syndrome (SARS) and swine flu in Hong Kong as Deputy
Director of Health and Director of Health, respectively, before he
retired from his 34 years tenure as a public officer in 2012.

Dr. Lam played and continues to play an active role in the public
health community. He has been a life member of the Society of
Community Medicine and life associate member of the Hong Kong
AIDS Foundation, since 1990 and 1991, respectively. Between 1995
and 2013, he had served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a
member of the Council of Smoking and Health from 1996 to 2003.
Between 2001 and 2012, he was a member of the Medical Council of
Hong Kong. Between 2003 and June 2012, he served as (i)
Commissioner of Auxiliary Medical Service; (i) Chairman of Chinese
Medicines Board; (i) Chairman of International Advisory Board of
Hong Kong Chinese Materia Medica Standards; (iv) Chairman of
Pharmacy and Poisons Board; (v) Chairman of Radiation Board; (vi)
Member of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong; (vii) Member
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of the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board; and (vii) Member of the
Hospital Authority Board. He has been an Honorary Professor of the
Department of Medicine and Therapeutics and School of Public
Health of the Chinese University of Hong Kong since 2004. Between
2004 and 2005, Dr. Lam was a Council member of the Hong Kong
College of Community Medicine. He was Deputy Chairman of Cancer
Coordinating Committee from 2006 to June 2012. Between 2008
and June 2012, he was the Vice Chairman of the Working Group on
Diet and Physical Activity and Steering Committee on Prevention and
Control of Non-Communicable Diseases. He was the Vice Chairman
of Working Group on Alcohol and Health and Working Group on
Injuries from 2009 to June 2012. On various occasions, he had
served as a temporary advisor to the World Health Organization
(“WHO?”) on policy and strategy of development of traditional medicine
and control of non-communicable diseases. He served as Chairman
to the 2009/2010 Session of the Regional Committee Meeting of the
Western Pacific Region of WHO. Between 2010 and 2013, Dr. Lam
served as an Adviser of the Overseas Expert Consulting Committee
of the Ministry of Health of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
Health Care Reform. In 2012, he was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC. He was further awarded with the Cross-Strait
Contribution Award for Chinese in Tobacco Control by the Chinese
Association on Tobacco Control in the PRC in 2012. He was the
Principal Adviser (International Collaboration) of the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine of PRC between 2012
and 2017.

Dr. Lam graduated from the University of Hong Kong, faculty of
Medicine with his Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery in
1977. He further obtained his Master of Medicine degree in Public
Health from the National University of Singapore in 1992. He is also a
fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Medicine and a registered
specialist in community medicine.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David (28 #5[E), aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is
also a member of audit committee and nomination committee. Mr.
Cheng graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November
1975 with a Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences. He has extensive
experience in banking, corporate finance and shipfinance. Mr. Cheng
has retired from the Head of Shipfinance in the Shipfinance
Department of Credit Agricole CIB with effect from 1 May 2014 and
was the Senior Advisor to the Global Shipping Group of that bank
from June 2014 to June 2016. He was the Honorary Chairman of
Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited for 3 years from 2016. Credit
Agricole CIB and Credit Agricole Asia Shipfinance Limited are third
parties independent of the Company and not connected persons of
the Company. Mr. Cheng was a member of the Working Group on
Transportation under the Hong Kong Economic Development
Commission, a member of Hong Kong Maritime and Port Board, and
the chairman of the Promotion and External Relations Committee of
the Maritime and Port Board till March 2018. In May 2015, Mr. Cheng
was conferred the Distinction of “Chevalier de I'Ordre National du
Mérite” by the French Government. Mr. Cheng has been an
independent non-executive director of Singamas Container Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 716) since 1 November 2012 and the
independent non-executive director of Sincere Navigation Corp (T
f38 B 19 B FR A A1) which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
with effect from 28 June 2019. He is the Honorary Treasurer of the
Hong Kong Maritime Museum from 2016.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo (Zf#i 1), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He
is the chairman of the audit and remuneration committees and a
member of the nomination committee. Mr. Cheng has been a
member and fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since December 1987 and August 1998
respectively and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) since January 1999, and a member and
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada
since November 1990 and December 2019. Mr. Cheng has over 30
years of experience in auditing, finance and business management.
He has been the sole proprietor of Erik Cheng & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Hong Kong since 1999.Mr. Cheng graduated from
the University of Kent, England with a Bachelor’'s degree in
Accounting in July 1983 and a Master’s degree in Accounting and
Finance from the London School of Economics, England in August
1984. Mr. Cheng currently acts as an independent non-executive
director of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely, CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), Chong Hing Bank
Limited (Stock Code: 1111), Top Spring International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 194), Goldbond Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
172), Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 3839),
CPMC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 906), Somerley Capital
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8439), Kidsland International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 2122) and C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd (Stock Code:
43). Mr. Cheng retired as an independent non-executive director of
DTXS Sikk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code:
620) with effect from 29 May 2020. Mr. Cheng resigned as an
independent non-executive director of C.P. Lotus Corporation which
was delisted on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
121) with effect from 28 October 2019 and resigned as an
independent non-executive director of HKC (Holdings) Limited which
was delisted on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
190) with effect from 8 June 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Mr. LI Wai Kwan (Z{2%), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 19 December 2016. He is a member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee. Mr. Li has many years
of experience in accounting, finance and investment management.
Mr. Li is the chief financial officer of Crystal International Group
Limited (stock code: 2232), which is principally engaged in
manufacturing of fashion products since November 2018, while he is
responsible for finance matters for that group. From March 2005 to
September 2006, he worked for Esprit Holdings Limited, which is
listed on the Main Board (stock code: 330) and principally engaged in
manufacturing, retail and wholesale distribution of fashion products,
and he served as a vice president of operational finance and a vice
president of finance in Asia Pacific region from March 2005 to
September 2006, while he was responsible for finance and
operational matters. From October 2006 to September 2010, he was
a vice president of COFCO China Agri-Industries Holdings Limited,
which is listed on the Main Board (stock code: 606) and principally
engaged in trading on agricultural raw materials, manufacturing and
distributing food products, while he was responsible for finance,
investment and company secretarial matters. Mr. Li was a managing
director and director of the board of COFCO Agricultural Industrial
Investment Fund Management Company Limited, which is principally
engaged in asset management, from September 2010 to October
2011, and he was responsible for managing overall business and
investment matters. Mr. Li was a managing director of Origo Partners
PLC, whose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange and
principal business is private equity investment, from November 2011
to January 2013, and he was responsible for investment matters. Mr.
Li was the chief financial officer of Zhuhai Dahenggin Company
Limited and its affiliate Zhuhai Dahengqin Property Company Limited,
which is principally engaged in primary land development, real estate
development, theme park construction and operation, city operational
management, and asset management in Hengaqin Free Trade Zone,
from August 2013 to October 2018, while he was responsible for
finance, investment and fund management matters.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Li is a director, executive committee member and honorary
treasurer of the Hong Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation
Foundation since 2015, an Honorary President of the Institute of
Certified Management Accountants — Hong Kong & Macau Branch
since 2018, a Chairman of Institute of Public Accountants — Hong
Kong Branch since 2019, a Committee member, SME committee of
ACCA — Hong Kong Branch since 2019, and a General Committee
member and Chairman of Professional Education and Training
Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies since
2020.

Mr. Li was the chairman of Investor Relations Committee of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies from 2008 to 2010, the
honorary vice chairman of China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) in 2009, the chairman of Partnership and
Promotion Committee of the Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association from 2009 to 2010, a member of the Organising
Committee of Directors of the Year Awards 2010 organised by The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2010, a committee member of the
PRC committee of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity
Association in 2011, a committee member of Public Awareness
Committee of Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts in 2016, and a
board member of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada —
Hong Kong Chapter from 2017 to 2020. Mr. Li was a member of
Finance Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Authority from 2010
to 2012. Mr. Li was the guest lecturer of the Macau University of
Science and Technology in 2016.

Mr. Li graduated from University of Toronto in Canada with a bachelor
of commerce degree with distinction in November 1995. He further
obtained a master of business administration degree from Schulich
School of Business, York University in Canada in November 1996.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEB2BEREHE

Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants in August 2000, a chartered financial
analyst of the Chartered Financial Analysts Institute in September
2001, a certified general accountant of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada in October 2002, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in October 2004, a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 2005, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2008, a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April
2010, a chartered professional accountant of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015,
a member of Hong Kong Business Accountants Association in
December 2015, a fellow of the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants in April 2016, a member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute in August 2016, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales in June 2018, a fellow of
the Institute of Public Accountants in July 2019, a fellow of the
Institute of Financial Accountants in July 2019, a business and finance
professional of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England &
Wales in December 2019, and a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association in December 2019.

Mr. Li is the independent non-executive director of K W Nelson
Interior Design and Constructing Group Limited (stock code: 8411)
since 18 November 2016, and the independent non-executive
director of TL Natural Gas Holdings Limited (stock code: 8536) since
18 May 2018. Mr. Li was the independent non-executive director of
China Asia Valley Group Limited (formerly known as China Graphene
Group Limited) (stock code: 63) from 1 February 2018 to 31
November 2018, the independent non-executive director of China
Greenfresh Group Company Limited (stock code: 6183) from 20 July
2018 to 5 June 2020, and the independent non-executive director of
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) from 27
April 2017 to 12 October 2020.

Note: The Group’s business are under the direct responsibility of the above executive
Directors who are the senior management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Code

The Group recognises the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, achieve high standard of accountability
and protect stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code, except the deviation stipulated below.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Under the current management
structure of the Company, Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Mrs. Gigi Ma) is the
chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”) and chief executive officer of
the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”). As Mrs. Gigi Ma has
been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer and
sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the establishment of
the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi Ma acting as the
Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more effective management
and planning of the Group. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is acceptable and
appropriate in the circumstances and currently does not propose to
separate the functions of chairman and the chief executive officer.

Compliance of Code of Conduct for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Having made specific
enquiries 1o all the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company during the year.
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Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the year and up to the date of this report, the composition of
the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln (appointed on 22 April 2020)
Dr. Lam Ping Yan (appointed on 15 July 2020)

Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry (resigned on 1 July 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David

Mr. Li Wai Kwan

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has complied
with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least 3 independent non-executive directors representing more than
one-third of the Board and the independent non-executive directors
whom possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. All
independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for
assessment of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
makes an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company is of that view that all
the independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 18 to 25 of this annual report.
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Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer. As Mrs. Gigi
Ma has been leading the Group as the Group’s Chief Executive
Officer and sole director of each of major subsidiaries since the
establishment of the relevant major subsidiaries, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mrs. Gigi
Ma acting as the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer for more
effective management and planning of the Group. Therefore, the
Board considers that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is acceptable and appropriate in the circumstances and
currently does not propose to separate the functions of chairman and
the chief executive officer.

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for overall management, branding and strategic, planning,
marketing and development of our Group. She also is a member of
remuneration committee and chairing the Nomination Committee.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
which includes controlling resources allocation of the Company and
leading the Company to strive for success. It oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions, internal control, risk management
and performances. The management team is delegated with the
authority and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of
the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board to the management include (1) the preparation of interim
and annual reports and announcements for the Board’s approval
before publishing; (2) implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures; and (3) compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine the
appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures
are in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance
objectives.
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Board/Board Committee Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Company, and to
review and approve the Company’s interim and annual results. Four
regular board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2021 and the attendance of each Director at the Board meetings is
set out on page 29 of this report. At the Board meeting held on 18
June 2021, the Board has approved, among other matters, the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Regular Board meetings for each year are scheduled in advance to
facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. All Directors are given an
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in preparing the agenda for
meetings to comply with all applicable rules and regulations. The
agenda and the accompanying Board papers are normally sent to
Directors at least three days before the intended date of a Board
meeting. Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the next Board
meeting for approval. The minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
HE/BTEERE

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination Annual
Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHZEE HMZzEe ReZEe i
Ezees E S EE BEAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Bt 4/4 - 3/3 33 11
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln {755t (R 2020F
(appointed on 22 Apri 2020) 4R22BRZM) 33 - - - 11
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MR EE (R20205F
(appointed on 15 July 2020) 7TA15HEZAE) 1/1 - - - 1/1
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry SERLE
(resigned on 1 July 2020) (20207 A1 BEHT) 2/2 - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHTES
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David EEBEE 4/4 2/2 - 33 1/1
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BHMEE 474 2/2 3/3 3/3 1/1
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FRERE 4/4 2/2 3/3 - 11
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Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Members after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board
as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

During the year, the changes of Directors of the Company are set out
below:

1. Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln was appointed as executive Director
with effect from 22 April 2020.

2. Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry resigned as executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2020 due to devote more of his time to his
other personal investment plans.

3. Dr. Lam Ping Yan was appointed as executive Director with
effect from 15 July 2020.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company received from the Directors the
following records of the training attended during the year ended 31
March 2021.
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Nature of Trainings

FEE
Type 1 Type 2
%18 %28
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi RN+ 4
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln fAFmkd
(appointed on 22 April 2020) (FR2020F 4 A22 HEZ ) 4
Dr. Lam Ping Yan MEEBAE
(appointed on 15 July 2020) (FA2020F 7 A 15 HEZF) 4 4
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry SRR AE
(resigned on 1 July 2020) (72202047 A1 B&HT) 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo LGRS & v 4
Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David SR B 5 A 4 4
Mr. Li Wai Kwan FREXE v
Type of trainings: EHERE
1. Reading materials. 1. BIEM L -
2. Attending training sessions/conference/forum/workshops/seminars. 2. HEERIE & wis T Hstg -

Corporate Governance Function

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board, which include (a) develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the Board; (b) review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management of the
Company and its subsidiaries; (c) review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the corporate
governance report of the Company required to be prepared pursuant
to the Listing Rules; and (f) consider, review and decide any other
topics, as authorised by the Board. During the year, the Board
reviewed and discussed the corporate governance policy of the
Group and was satisfied with the effectiveness of its corporate
governance policy.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference following the Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the
Listing Rules and the CG Code. The audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) is authorised to commit Company funds in
order to obtain advice from outside legal counsel, accountants,
investigatory services or other expert advice. Details of the authority
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu
Kwok David, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan and Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
March 2021 and the meeting was attended by the Company’s
external auditor so that the members of the Audit Committee could
exchange their views and concerns on the financial reporting process
of the Group with the auditor.

During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed with the
Management and the external auditor the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal
controls, and financial reporting matters including the following:

° the review of the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020;

° the review of the annual results announcement;

° the recommendation to the Board for the proposal for re-
appointment of the external auditor of the Company and
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor; and

° the review of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out on
page 29 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee has been established by the Board (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
following the Rules 3.25 to Rules 3.26 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code and the majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs and responsible to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management. Details of the authority and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Yuk
Wo and Mr. Li Wai Kwan. Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held three meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2021 with the presence of all committee members.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration packages
and performance bonuses for the Directors and senior management
of the Company as well as the remuneration packages of new
executive Directors and assessed performance of executive Directors.

The Group’s businesses are under the direct responsibility of the
above executive Directors who are the senior management of the
Company. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board with
specific terms of reference following the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for, amongst other things, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, considering
the reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors and making recommendations to the Board in respect of
the aforesaid matters. Details of the authority and responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and two INEDs, namely Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok
David and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo. Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi is the chairlady of
the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee held three meeting during the year ended
31 March 2021 with the presence of all committee members. During
the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and board diversity policy, discussed
matters regarding the retirement and re-election of Directors and
succession planning for directors and assessment of the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and made
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee concluded that members of
the Board have possessed the expertise and independence to carry
out the Board’s functions and responsibilities.

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure of
appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection criteria used in
assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter alia, such
candidate’s academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant experience in the industry, character and integrity etc.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the nomination committee reviews
the structure, size and composition of the Board periodically and
make recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. When it is necessary
to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an additional director, the
nomination committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the committee pursuant to the criteria set out in the
Nomination Policy. Based upon the recommendation of the
nomination committee, the Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment. In addition, every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation or re-election at least once every three years and shall be
eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting. The nomination
committee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company, expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
directors, who offered himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting, to determine whether such director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the basis to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against selection criteria.
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For selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not be limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board taking into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time and with due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board’s composition will
be disclosed in the annual report of the Company. The Board will give
adequate consideration to this policy when it identifies suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
amongst them, three are INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and
control of the management process. The Board is also characterized
by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’s composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Policy
had been met.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to implement
the Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure
their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Board has not set any
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness.

Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Company, dividends may be paid
out of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the
Company, out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the
amount recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other
factors which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant
from time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the
historical declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the
absolute discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company
does not have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements on an on-going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary, for each financial period
with a view to ensure that such financial statement gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of the results and
cash flows for the financial year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has selected
appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which
are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial statements,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and ensured the preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects. The interim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a timely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for preparing all
information and representation contained in the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The responsibility of the Company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young is
set out as follows:

Services rendered

ZHET B 2
RAFER - BN T RARH DB
ZBEBIImT -

Fee paid/payable

FriR 4 AR 7% B ENEA
HK$’000

FHIT

Audit services % B AR TS 1,650
Non-audit services IEX ER TS 488

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
oversees the overall risk management of the Group and endeavours
to identify, control impact of the identified risks and facilitate
implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been developed with the following features and processes:

(@  The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification: Identifies risks that may potentially affect the
Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment: Assesses the risks identified by using the
assessment criteria developed by the management; and
considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response: Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of
the risk assessment; and determines the risk management
strategies and internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting: Performs ongoing and periodic
monitoring of the risk and ensures that appropriate internal
control processes are in place; revises the risk management
strategies and internal control processes in case of any
significant change of situation; and reports the results of risk
monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal control
systems are summarised as follows:

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance
with relevant laws, rules and regulations; ensure proper
maintenance of accounting records for provision of reliable
financial information used within the business or for publication;
ensure that unauthorized access and use of inside information
are strictly prohibited; and to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is currently
of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of
the Group’s business. Nevertheless the Company engaged an
external professional firm to carry out internal audit functions. It was
decided that the Board would be directly responsible for internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Board has engaged an external professional firm as its risk
management and internal control review adviser (“the Adviser”) to
conduct the annual review of the risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2021. Such review is
conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The
scope of review was previously determined and approved by the
Board. The Adviser has reported to the Audit Committee and
management for findings and areas for improvement, if any. The
Board and Audit Committee are of the view that there are no material
internal control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser
are properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information
about the Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and
procedures for handling and dissemination of inside information. With
those guidelines and procedures, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the
Board to decide about the need for disclosure.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
Company secretarial service and has appointed Mr. LO Tai On as its
Company Secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of HKICPA and has over 25
years of experience in the field of company secretarial services. Mr.
Lo has confirmed that for the Year Under Review, he has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Lo is not an
employee of our Group and he is responsible for advisory to the
Group on corporate governance matters. Mr. Gordon Leung, our
finance director, is the person who Mr. Lo can contact for the
purpose of code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Shareholders’ Right

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and to put forward proposal at general meetings.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Article 85 of the articles of association of the Company provides that
no person other than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for election as
a Director at any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the registration office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written
notice must state that person’s biographical details as required by
Rule 13.51 of Listing Rules. The procedures for shareholder of the
Company to propose a person for election as director is posted on
the Company’s website.

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing by post at Room 1605, 16th Floor, Leighton
Centre, 77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The
Company shall forward the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries and concerns to
the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where
appropriate, to respond to the Shareholder(s)’ enquiries.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company communicates with its Shareholders and investors
through various means. Timely publication of interim and annual
results announcements on the latest development
of the Company and press release on the Company’s website
and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk could make the Shareholders appraise the
Company’s financial position. Shareholders are highly required to pay
attention to these public information. Holding of an annual general
meeting could provide an effective forum for the Shareholders to
share their views with the Board. At the annual general meeting held
in 2020, separate resolutions were proposed by the chairman in
respect of each separate, including re-election of directors and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules. The respective chairman
of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee had attended the annual general meeting held
in 2020 to ensure effective communication with shareholders. All the
Directors had attended the annual general meeting held in 2020.

Investor Relations

The public are welcomed to give their comments and make enquiries
through the Company’s website and by means of emails to the
investor relations department (email address: miricor@sprg.com.hk).
The management always provides prompt responses to any such
enquiries.

Constitutional Documents

The Company has published its memorandum of association and the
Articles on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, no amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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About this Report

Preparation Basis and Scope

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited is delighted to publish its annual
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (“ESG Report”), demonstrating our continuous
commitment to corporate social responsibility. This ESG Report has
been prepared in accordance with ESG Reporting Guide set out by
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and has complied with the “comply
or explain” provisions. This ESG Report covers the sustainability
performance and initiatives of the Group in respect of corporate social
responsibility during the reporting period, covering the Group’s core
businesses — the provision of medical aesthetic services, and the
sale of skin care products in Hong Kong. This ESG Report shall be
published both in Chinese and English. Should there be any
discrepancy between the Chinese and the English versions, the
English version shall prevail.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the period from 1
April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (“reporting period”). It includes
disclosure of significant environmental and social impacts of our
operation in Hong Kong.

Introduction

The Group is a medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong and
operates three “CosMax” branded medical aesthetic centres at prime
locations in Causeway Bay, Central District and Tsim Sha Tsui. We
offer comprehensive and tailored non-surgical medical aesthetic
services and quality skin care products to improve customers’
complexion and overall physical appearance.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainable development.
Sustainability is crucial for the Group’s growth in order to achieve
business excellence and enhance long-term competitiveness. The
Group has established and implemented various policies to manage
and monitor the risks related to environment, employment, operating
practices and community. Details of the management approaches to
sustainable development of different areas are illustrated in this ESG
Report.
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Stakeholders Engagement

Stakeholders engagement is essential to the formulation of strategies
for sustainable development. It allows the Group to understand risks
and opportunities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are
important to our business and established various channels for
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communication.

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures

B E B SERE it

Government Comply with laws and pay Exchange of Operated, managed and paid taxes

proper tax payments correspondences, relevant  according to laws and regulations,
meetings and information  strengthened safety management;
disclosure accepted government’s supervision,
inspection and evaluation.
B BPERIRZEGNTIE BAEKR  HEgEKE BREEOIRAMKE - BB RSN

Shareholders and
Investors

BREEE

Employees

el
il

e

Provide high transparency
for information disclosure

and protect shareholder’s
rights and interest

RERWERHSERE
VAR AR [ B SR A A Ko M| 2

Maintain a safe and
respectful workplace,
including equal
opportunities as well as
health and safety

HEFZE2MNEENTIFS
P BREVPEEEIAR
BERZZ

B EE

Annual reports, interim
reports and
announcements

Annual general meeting
and other shareholder
meetings
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Training and briefing
sessions, employee
feedback mechanism, and
fair mechanism for
employment and
promotion
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B MARREE  BEREEE B
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Disclosed company’s information by
publishing annual reports, interim reports
and announcements.

Issued notices of general meeting and
proposed resolutions according to
regulations.
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Provided training to employees; provided
employment and promotion practices that
do not discriminate on grounds of gender,
disability, pregnancy, family status, race,
colour, religion, age or other conditions
recognized in law.
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Stakeholders Engagement (Continued)

B ELXHE ()

Stakeholder Expectation Engagement channel Measures
B E e SHERE it
Customers Provide safe, high-quality  Customer satisfaction Strengthened quality management to
products and services to  surveys, customer ensure safety, high quality production and
customers feedback activities, day to  communicate with customers to improve
day operations/ quality of services.
communications, service
and product complaints
and response mechanisms
B AEPRELZE  BEE FPRERADT TPRE NRELEEEURRZ:  BE4E-
an K2 AR 7% EE) - BEEE /B UTREPBBUNSEREEE -
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Environmental Aspects

Emissions

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable development
and compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

The Group has established system to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by adopting low
energy consumption and environmental pollution techniques and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall responsibility
for environmental protection matters within the Group. The
management team reviews the Group’s environmental compliance on
a regular basis. The Group was in strict compliance with related
environmental laws and regulation, including but not limited to Waste
Disposal Ordinance. The Group was not subject to any environmental
claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative sanctions during the
reporting period.

44 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021

REEM

BRI

AR RN S B B AT R AR B R A 7RGE M BRER (R AR
BZEGINRPIERER  AEBRNBEEE
HNREFERERENASLBRARELERKZ
EBRAEER -

AEBDRIAGUABRIRAGATE - A%
B = SOE B R KREIRB R MRS R -
PARGEBE BB TME BMRRER - AME
LEEE - EREBEBKEASEANRREEAE
BEM - EERESRERRIAKENREAR
BEH - AEEERETHBERBED KRG
BRETRRCEMREGD) - RIBEHHE
AREBIWBTARITRE - XD K
TR HIEL -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS - HERERBRE

Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

In the daily operation of the Group, the major emissions are clinical
wastes and the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) incurred by the purchased
energy resources. Clinical wastes generated by the operations can be
divided into two categories. Category A includes syringes, needles,
cartridges and other sharp instruments which have been used or
which have become contaminated. Category B includes surgical
dressings, swabs dribbling with blood, caked with blood or containing
free-flowing blood. Clinical wastes collection box is placed in each
doctor’s room. Category A waste is collected in Sharps Collector.
Once it is filled up, it must be covered and wait for recycle. Category
B waste is collected in red biochemical wastes plastic bags. All
wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger for record.
Qualified clinical waste recycling companies are engaged to perform
waste disposal and treatment so as to minimize the impact on the
nature. During the reporting period, the total amount of clinical wastes
recycled by qualified clinical waste recycling companies is 76 kg
(2020: 152.50 kQ).

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The Group
manages the carbon footprint by minimizing the energy consumption
and water consumptions as these activities cause significant emission
of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures adopted on resources
saving are mentioned in the section “Use of Resources” of this ESG
Report.

Major air pollutants emissions from vehicles during the reporting
period as follows:

Air Pollutant Emissions

IRIFEME ()
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Air Pollutant Air Pollutant ZERISEY ZREFRY ERSEY

Type of Air Pollutants Emission (kg) Emission (kg) =Rl HWE (TR) RE(TR)
2021 2020 2021 2020 &

Sulphur Dioxide 0.02 0.03 —&ibR 0.02 0.03
Nitrogen Oxides 0.68 0.84 RED 0.68 0.84
Particulate Matter 0.05 0.06 BIFRF 0.05 0.06
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

During the reporting period, the GHG emissions from the operation is
set out below:

IRIZEEM (&)

ek ()

RIS R - LBE MRS REERYRT
mE

GHG Emissions BEREHIY

Type of GHG Equivalent CO, EquivalentCO, BZf# “EthEE —EtHREE
emissions emission (kg)  emission (kg) HERmER HE(TR) HE(FH)

2021 2020 2021 & 2020
Scope 1 Direct emissions 4,595.24 5,543.00 HE1EREN 4,595.24 5,543.00
Scope 2 Indirect emissions 204,245.11 203,093.43 HE2 RN 204,245.11 203,093.43
Total 208,840.35 208,636.43 @t 208,840.35 208,636.43
Intensity 67.78 kg/m? 63.98 kg/m? WE 67.78F 7%/ Fhk 6398F R/ FHK
Note: MIEE -

The calculation of the greenhouse gas is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from greenhouse gas protocol.

Scope 1:  Direct emissions from vehicles that are owned by the Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by
the Group

Scope 3: is not disclosed as it is an optional disclosure and the corresponding emission
is not controlled by the Group

Use of Resources

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environment, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of natural resources,
including energy such as minimize waste streams and emissions and
implement effective recycling program. The Group also adopted
“Environmental Office Practices” in order to use resource more
efficiently. Some of the key measures are as follows:

Energy consumption by the Group during the reporting period is set

out below:
Energy Consumption

Energy consumed Energy consumed
Type of energy (kWh) (kWh)
2021 2020
Unleaded petrol 16,446.25 18,195.50
Purchased electricity 272,366.00 276,737.00
Total 288,812.25 294,932.50
Energy intensity 93.73 kKWh/m? 90.44 kKWh/m?
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

Paper Saving

In office, we encourage the employee to use both sides of paper and
use suitable font size/shrinkage mode to minimise pages, if possible.
Besides, use electronic media is recommended for circulation/
communication, to minimize using paper (e.g. without unnecessary
cover page and fax). During the reporting period, the total amount of
recycled paper disposed at landfills is 1,344 kg (2020: 546 kg).

Water Conservation

Employee should report leaking faucet or pipe to the relevant authority
and turn off the tap when not in use. During the reporting period, the
total consumption of the water and water intensity per employee is
66 m® and 0.03 m¥/m?, respectively (2020: 104 m® and 0.03 m%/m?).

Electricity Conservation

The electrical appliance should be set as energy saving mode where
possible. For computers, the idle automatically mode is 20 minutes or
less. The set room temperature should be set in a range from 20°C to
25.5°C. The ideal optimal temperature is 25.5°C. Also, switch off
unnecessary lighting and power supply should be switched off when
they are not in use.

Green Pantry

Employee are encouraged to use reusable cutleries, cups and
glasses and use environmental friendly cleaning products (e.g.
biodegradable or phosphate free detergent, refillable soap, etc.).

Packaging Material

The major packaging material used in our business are mainly paper
and plastic bottle. The consumption of those material during the
reporting period is summarized below:
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Packaging Material Consumption BEMBEFE
Packaging material Amount (Ibs) Amount (Ibs) aEME HEEE (BE) HEE (B
2021 2020 2021 £ 2020 F
Paper 7,572.00 9,910.00 4R 7,572.00 9,910.00
Plastic bottle 24,381.00 46,769.00 2 24,381.00 46,769.00
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Environmental Aspects (Continued)

Use of Resources (Continued)

The Environment and Natural Resources

According to the Group’s “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy”,
the Group raises staff’'s awareness of environmental issues through
education and training and enlist their support in improving our
performance, promote environmental awareness amongst our
customers, business partners and shareholders and support
community activities in relation to environmental protection and
sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and present
business activities impacting upon health, safety and environmental
matters. With the integration of policies mentioned in session
“Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group is allowed to minimize
the impacts to the environment and natural resources.

Social Aspects

Employment and Labour Practice

Employment

The Group considers human resources as its most important asset,
employees are encouraged to invest in career growth where the
Group provides on-the-job training, and further education supports
that enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thus improving
the overall calibre of its workforce. In addition, the Group also
evaluates employee performance on a regular basis and recognises
and rewards outstanding employees. The Group has established and
implemented “Staff Handbook”, which contains the policies relating to
human resources, covering areas such as compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits
and welfare.

The remuneration package of our employees includes basic salary,
commission and discretionary performance bonus. In order to
incentivise our staff for their contribution to improve our business
performance, we have formulated an incentive scheme for certain
front-line employees with their commission linked to the amount of
sales of our services and products. We offer a fixed commission rate
which applies uniformly across all services and products we offer,
including the sales of one-off treatment, prepaid packages and skin
care products.

48  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021

RIBEE (#)

EREMA )

BERXALR
BEAEEN (B  BERTSHE] A%
B35 B RIE I R F BB T ke R
MR DEABIMBRESY  HEES -
EBBERBREBOBRES  ARLEE
BBRRABERROLEED - T T
RERBERIBREEIHURE T2 RB
BEANTE - MEEA (B R [ERE
| S HHRECE - AEETBHIEERRA
BROYEREHIE -

g E

BEREIESR

E=

AEBRANBERRESEENEE - REE
BEERENBERR  AKERE TRMLER
B MEEER RS REFNERMHE NI
BE o IEMIRABEIMERER - B KEE
NeEFHREERE  BALKEBRERELR
MRS - AREEFIEMERIETFM] - F
ML BRBANERNOBEER - BENHEEH
B E BERET Ik KEKRE - F
EFHe - Zit - REE REMEN MAEAL

BREENFMFEREEATH - e LB
BRI[IELL - HFIRE TR B THIE T8
FHE - P AE BRAREMERNHE
ML - UREABRMNE T REFEBR
EMELER - RPRHEENAESE  f—
ERRAARMRENRENER  BFEHEE
—RMEERE - AR MEEEM



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HERERRE

7B 55

Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

It is our objective to provide equality of opportunity for all staff in
relation to all human resources matters. We shall recognize and
reward meritorious performance and provide equal opportunity of
employment irrespective of sex, age, marital status, race, religion,
disability or employment status. The principle of equal opportunities is
applied in all employment policies, in particular to recruitment,
training, career development and promotion of employees. If
employee is treated unequally in the workplace, he/she can report to
the supervisors.

Further, we offer welfare and benefits for all our employees to foster
their loyalty to our Group. For examples, employee can enjoy discount
for treatment and products in our company. Basically, every rule in
the handbook is set in accordance with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to Employment Ordinance. With
our efforts made on regulation, no case of violation against the labour
rules occurred during the reporting period. The Group will continue to
strive to comply with the relevant laws and regulations.

Health and Safety

As stipulated in the Group’s “Environmental Health and Safety Policy”,
no job is so important and no service so urgent, that we cannot take
time to perform our work safely, and in an environmentally
conscientious manner. The Group strives to provide staff with a safe
and healthy work environment and develop a safety awareness
among employees and others engaged in work, so that accidents
(personal injuries and property damage) and occupational illnesses
will be reduced to a minimum. In order to raise employees’ awareness
in maintaining health and safety issues, the Group offers safety
training programs and hazards measurement programs. Besides,
safety equipment is provided to the employees. Also, it is the
responsibility for the Group to identify and control safety, public
health, and environmental hazards associated with their operations
and work constructively with government agencies and others to
develop and implement laws, regulations, and standards to protect
public health, safety, and the environment.

During the reporting period, the Group was in strict compliance with
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and there was no related
work injuries or fatalities and no legal case regarding health and safety
brought against the Group.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Development and Training

The Group believes that providing training to our staff is also an
important factor in attracting and retaining employees. The Group
aims to facilitate personal and professional development enabling
individuals and groups to achieve their full potential at work according
to the Group’s “Staff Training and Development Policy”.

The Group is committed to provide professional trainings to our
trained therapists in order to provide quality services to our clients.
Our trainings included both theoretical and practical trainings and our
training program has been specifically formulated by our doctors and
training manager. We provide on the job training to strengthen the
quality of our trainings offered to our staff. We are of the view that the
ability to keep abreast of the latest trend in medical aesthetic services
and to offer quality service will impact our client traffic, revenue
growth and financial performance.

From time to time, our doctors attend industry conferences, seminars
and workshops in Hong Kong and overseas as well as seminars
organised by our suppliers on topics such as injection procedures
and energy-based procedures.

We require our newly recruited therapists to undergo a six-month
training programme provided by us prior to performing treatments as
agreed by the doctors for our clients.

In recognition of our achievement in manpower training and
development and in fostering an organisational culture conducive to
life-long learning, we were awarded under the ERB Manpower
Developer Award Scheme and Caring Company Logo during the
reporting period.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

Labour Standards

According to “No Child Labour Policy”, the Group does not employ
any person below the age of eighteen years at the workplace and
prohibits the use of child labour and forced or compulsory labour at
all its units. No employee is made to work against his/her will or work
as bonded/forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment or
coercion of any type related to work. Employment contracts and
other records, documenting all relevant details of the employees,
including age, are maintained at all units and are open to verification
by any authorised personnel or relevant statutory body. The unit
provides an annual report to the functional head on any incidents of
child or forced labour. Periodic assessment is conducted. The human
resources department undertakes random checks of records
annually.

During the reporting period, the Group complied with the Employment
Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and did not
violated any relevant labour laws and regulations including child and
forced labour laws and regulations.

Operating Practice

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established “Procurement Policy and Guide to
Procedures” which aims to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations and appropriate social practices governing our
businesses, provide suppliers with equal opportunities for transactions
with the Group; and promote procurement activities based on mutual
understanding and trust. In order to manage the environmental or
social risks in the supply chain, we have strengthen the control in
procurement of treatment devices/consumables and skin care
products as below.

HEHEE)

EERLEITERE)

T

BEIMBEIRE] AEEFEEIES
FHEREA+N\BRATHOAL - TAZEH
Fi BArE S THRA R SIS T - (R
aﬂﬁL&gam%@I¢¢¢ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁ#

BTTE XBETEABATAELE
SHERE - PRABEAIRE ﬁé-\ﬂﬁﬁﬁé\lﬂﬁﬁ

foresk ERCHTHARBEER(BESF
fie) - I MAR ERIXEA B RRATE RS

BE ZEBEURENEIRRFHS TEHFEZR
BEXTEABRRFR - AT A EHET -

ANE RS FERERMELCE -

RIEHRE - AEBEETEBENFE ST ECE
B - B2 RAEMER S AN KR
Bl BIRET RS AR AR -

REeER

HrERER

AEEHET [REBRRMZFES] §&
BT RTA E A HDAD R AR R BB AP H A
ERTEER  AEERREEAKERZHH
FERE  ANERE TREEEORERH
@JT%E%JE@J c BTERHERTHRTLLE

BB ISR A T ERAR R, H R K

fgﬁuuﬂ’]%ﬁﬁ i o

2021 3k / SWEREEER AT 51



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Treatment devices/treatment consumables

We place great emphasis on ensuring that treatment devices to be
introduced for use in our medical aesthetic centres are reliable and
capable of delivering desired results for our clients. To this end, we
have established policies and procedures to evaluate and assess
treatment devices. Our marketing and business development
department is primarily responsible for keeping abreast of the latest
technologies and conducting market research on the latest and
prevailing treatment technologies and skin care products. Periodic
meetings are held among our management, doctors and marketing
and business development department to discuss the latest
technologies and skin care products, during which our marketing and
business development department may recommend the types of
treatment devices to procure. From time to time, suppliers of
treatment devices visit us and demonstrate their treatment devices to
us, which may also provide us with a trial period during which we can
evaluate and assess the use and effectiveness of the treatment
devices.

When deciding whether to procure a new treatment device, we take
into account factors such as (i) whether it is approved by national
government agencies such as the Food and Drug Administration
(FDA) and/or whether such devices bear CE mark(s); (i) whether there
are similar devices on the market; (i) whether it is complementary to
our existing treatment offerings; and (iv) our internal test results. The
approval of our chief executive officer and doctors must be obtained
before we procure a new treatment device.

Skin care products

The skin care products offered by us are supplied by distributors and
manufacturers, all of which are Independent Third Parties. The
countries of origin of our skin care products include the United States,
[taly and France. We select and source skin care products carefully
based on factors such as the suppliers’ background, credentials and
reputation, product quality and cost. The approval of our chief
executive officer and doctors must be obtained before we take in any
new product for sale.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to offering an excellent customer experience
and ensuring that our products and services are safe and high quality.
We adhere to applicable laws regulating health and safety standards,
as well as those governing testing, advertising and labeling. The
Group was in strict compliance with related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Trade Description Ordinance, Consumer
Goods Safety Ordinance and Consumer Goods Safety Regulation
during the reporting period. Our aim is for our customers to have
confidence in our products and services, and sufficient information to
make informed choices. Therefore, the Group has a set of policies
and procedures to oversee and manage issues related to
responsibilities of our products and services.

Quality Assurance

Providing quality non-surgical medical aesthetic services is one of our
management priorities. We have adopted comprehensive and
stringent quality assurance and control measures throughout our
business processes that covers, among others, the following aspects:

Recruitment of professional staff

In selecting new doctors and therapists to join us, we assess, among
others, their academic and professional qualifications, years of
relevant experience as well as their character and integrity.

Performance of consultation and treatments

The carrying out of consultation services that involve the practice of
medicine, medical diagnosis, prescription of pharmaceutical products
and medicines (each as defined under the Pharmacy and Poisons
Ordinance (Chapter 138 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) and certain
types of treatments (such as injection of botulinum toxin type A and
dermal fillers) constitute the practice of medicine and therefore must
be carried out by registered medical practitioners pursuant to the
Medical Registration Ordinance (Chapter 151 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Our doctors carry out consultation services and such certain
treatment procedures which are specified under the relevant laws and
regulations as well as selective treatment procedures perceived by
our doctors as being high risk, whereas our trained therapists perform
other selective treatment procedures as directed by our doctors.
Based on our doctors’ professional experience and judgment on the
risk of severe complication, selective energy-based procedures are
performed by doctors only if there is potential risk of irreversible organ
or tissue damage including nerve injury, muscle burn, fat necrosis or
skin necrosis.

MtEFEE)

R ()

ERELE
AEBHNIBHEENEFBRRERK M
EnkBREEZE2NERE - BRMETEERE

RELZREE  DIREENE  BEMEZERD
WAED o Rk HAR » AEE BRI E ST AR

EBIRARG] - BIEE TR M BRG] -
CHEmZ 2D RCEEMREZZRAI) » 3 i
MEBEREEEEPHEMNERLBRBEREL -
WHFRHEMELALARE - At - A&
BHIE T —RIIBERAIZFF - AEBMEIRE
BMERLRBETABNER -

heft ﬁ%ﬁ#?ﬁﬂi SEXBRRB B FIHNER
Bz  BZEEBEEGRRTRAT 2H
BRREME RRE RIEHIEE - RE (R EHE)
ANETH

BREEXBT

TR EBATR B A FORBAm I ATRFIR - BifIE
FHE (BB RENEM M BEXER - 186
REBRFEARE mIBABIE
uuuq&r%ibjz)&

*ETE%/%/£1§\J%151E<<EQ FEMHES) - 1T
BRME BEDE  EHERNMEVES

(%i%ﬁ%\ﬂéi%%138@@%@%&%2%%
f51)) B K AR AE A TR AIERE (A ST A S
BRESRAMRKEATA) GBRAE - B
s B B A HETT o RAIBEERITRIE
MEREDIFNAR P46 T s IR K5 TERAE AR
FARBMANB LRSS RERIETEREER
Fr o i E AR AR R RIZR AR AN E X
SRR IR P A R T ETT - RIBRFIE

ENEXLRREBREMHFERRELDNA
B o 5 Rs B S S AR A LR T RE B E R

LR (BIE SIS - NI - Bl
SE kB BT - AT B B 4 28 TR B A e
BT -

2021 Fif / SPEREBEEFRAT 53



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERBRE

Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Quality Assurance (Continued)

Standard operation procedures and clear division of labour

We implemented standard operation procedures at our medical
aesthetic centres and a clear division of labour to improve operational
and administrative efficiency and enhance the quality of our services.
Our doctors (assisted by medical assistants) and trained therapists
are mainly responsible for performing treatments while our aesthetic
service specialists are mainly responsible for sales and promotion. To
monitor our client’s satisfaction towards the treatment received, we
contact the client within several days after the treatment by phone or
text message to gather his/her feedback. We maintain a log book on
feedback for management review. Such internal structure and well
defined responsibilities are established for the purpose of segregating
the powers of operations, sales and client service to achieve effective
check and balance.

Customer Data Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and privacy is
the key principle for operation. We comply with Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance. According to the Group’s Staff Handbook,
employee is required protect all the customers’ information.
Information only can be used in authorized business activities. If
employee disclose those information to other parties, it is considered
as data theft. The related employee’s employment will be terminated
and report to police for prosecution.

Anti-Corruption

In the Group’s “Staff Handbook”, one of the most important rules that
the Group requires all members of staff to observe is that they must
maintain honesty, refuse corruption, refuse to accept kickbacks, and
they must not misappropriate the Group’s funds and properties, must
not abuse power for own interests, and that all gifts received must be
handed to the Group.
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Social Aspects (Continued)

Operating Practice (Continued)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group shall strive to protect and uphold Group’s and our own
reputation, professionalism and integrity. To this end, we shall avoid
obligations to customers or business associates resulting from
advantages, gifts or entertainment received in or due to our official
capacity which could compromise our position in any way or be
perceived by a third party to potentially compromise ourselves or the
Group. When we participate in any social or academic activities,
either in a personal or official capacity, we shall avoid any unbecoming
acts which will bring us or the Group into disrepute.

Employees could whistle-blow to the supervisor for the suspected
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering issues by email.
Information of the whistleblower is confidential. Once discovered and
confirmed, related personnel will be published or his/her employment
will be terminated. The Group will be report to Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) or other institution depends
on the cases. The Group was in strict compliance with Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance and there was no any legal case regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees during reporting
period.

Community

Community Investment

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group has adopted “Community Investment Policy”, it aims to
establish a comprehensive system to oversee the activities related to
community investment. The Group strives to develop long-term
relationship with our stakeholders and seek to make contributions to
programmes that have a positive impact on community development.

The Group made charitable and other donations amounting to
HK$29,000 during the reporting period (2020: HK$29,000). Besides,
the Group had also contributed to the sustainable development of the
community by serving with care and concemn for the underprivileged
through the activities as follows:

° Joy Charity Walk, organized by Hong Kong Federation of
Handicapped Youth (2020/21)
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Update for Covid-19

In light of the outbreak of Covid-19 epidemic (the “Epidemic”) starting
from January 2020, the Group has paid attention to the progress of
the event and take the initiative to take the social responsibility of the
enterprise to help prevention and control the Epidemic.

The Company places the health and safety of its customers and staff
as its highest priority. On April 2020, in view of a direction (the
“Direction”) in the Government’s gazette in relation to certain premises
in accordance with the Prevention and Control of Disease
(Requirements and Directions) (Business and Premises) Regulation
(Chapter 599F of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Regulation”), the
board of directors of the Company (“the Board”) has decided that all
customer treatment centers of the Group will be closed during the
period as mentioned in the Direction, subject to any further extensions
that may be directed by the Government from time to time. The
Group’s other businesses remain unaffected.

Although the Group’s medical practitioners manage the day to day
operations at the Group’s customer treatment centers and provide
services and treatments not associated with those procedures
defined to be provided by beauty parlours under the Prevention and
Control of Disease (Requirements and Directions) (Business and
Premises) (Amendment) Regulation 2020 (including, but not limited
to, medical procedures, consultation & injection, medical aesthetic,
product sales and staff training), some of the other services and
treatments provided by the Group include procedures specified in the
Amendment Regulation, and they are carried out at the same
customer treatment centers of the Group.
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Update for Covid-19 (Continued)

Besides, during the temporary closure of our customer treatment
centers from 10 April 2020 to 7 May 2020, 15 July to 28 August 2020
and 10 December 2020 to 17 February 2021 per the latest epidemic
control guidelines issued by the HKSAR Government, thorough
disinfection was carried out to provide the best treatment experience
for clients. Also, to safeguard the health of clients, staff and public,
the following hygiene measures are also adopted:

— All staff must wear protective gears such as mask and face
shield all the time and the protective gears will be sanitized after
serving a customer;

—  Only serve customers upon appointment;

— No more than two people may be allowed in each partitioned
service area;

— The room and related treatment equipment are cleaned and
disinfected thoroughly before and after the treatment;

—  Crowd control measure is adopted. Upon client’s arrival, private
VIP room and treatment room will be arranged;

—  Public areas such as the lobby are disinfected every hour;
—  Please bring your own mask and wear a mask in the center;

—  Sanitary items are provided, such as disposable shoe covers,
sanitary floor mats and alcohol-based handrub etc.;

— Upon client’s arrival, the body temperature is measured and
health record has to be filled in. If client has respiratory
symptoms or body temperature higher than 37.3°C, treatment
appointment will be rescheduled to 14 days later; and

— If client or someone who lives with client is returning from
outside HKSAR, including mainland China and overseas, client
can only visit our center after 14 days.

The Board will continue to monitor the Epidemic situation closely and
continue to place the health and safety of its customers and staff as
its highest priority while ensuring compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations.
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Guide
Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE - -EFEH —REERBRERES =4z 0] B
A.  Environmental
RIS
Aspects Al: Emissions
[EmE A1 : HER)
General Disclosure “Emissions” 44-46
—R R [HEm ]
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions” 45-46
FRERIEE  BEEE AP EUR [HEm ]
Al.1
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, “Emissions” 46
intensity
BRENIER RAERBAHNRER(WER)EE [ R ]
Al.2
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, The Group generated no N/A
intensity significant hazardous waste
during the reporting period.
BREMIEER MELEEEEDHEER(WER)EE REBRGEHALEEE TEA

A1.3

KPI A1.4

RS AE IR R

A14

KPI A1.5

RARE IR
A15

ERNBEEEY -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, Recycled paper disposed at a7

intensity landfills — “Use of
Resources”
FECREEEVEEN (WER)BE ERHEE R IRR A
— [BRERA]

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results “Use of Resources” 46-48

achieved
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page

TEHE -EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are “Emissions” 44-46
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved

BRGEDIER HOREAENEZTEEVNIE  RIEELENERNR [HER ]

A1.6 TR

Aspects A2: Use of Resources

BT A2 : ER{EA
General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 46-48
—MRIKER [ &R

KPI A2.1 Direct and indirect energy consumption by type in total “Use of Resources” 46

FRERIEER RELISHEEZERFAZEREREES [ &R

A2.1

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources” a7

BREUIER BRKERTBE [ &R

A2.2

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results “Use of Resources” 46-47
achieved

FRERIEE e RE AN B RAEKRR [&IRERA

A2.3

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that “Use of Resources” a7
is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
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A2.4 SREIDES

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if “Use of Resources” a7
applicable, with reference to per unit produced
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A2.5
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHRE EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:0] B
Aspects A3: The Environmental and Natural Resources
[EHE A3 : RIERRRER
General Disclosure “The Environmental and 48
Natural Resources”
— R [IRIBERRAER]
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the "Emissions” &”Use of 44-48
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Resources”
manage them
BRGENIER HROAEBEHERERRRERNEATFERCENERE  [HW] R EREA]
A3.1 AR ENTTHY
B.  Social (Note a)
g (Msta)
Aspects B1: Employment and Labour Practices
[EmEB1 : ERERIETER
General Disclosure “Employment” 48-49
— R [MEfZ ]
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these
indicators.
BRBENIEERE  RIER - BEEDE - FRRARI N RE 5 R B AR REBBHAIWERZE  TEA
B1.1 BIREHwmE -
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and The Group currently does N/A
geographical region not report on these
indicators.
BRBENIERE RIER - FRER KRB D MEBRKL X REB AW ERZE  TEA
B1.2 BIREHwmE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs Section Page
TEHE -EEH —REEREARENESR E=4:0] BEH
Aspects B2: Health and safety
[ETH B2 : fREREZ 2
General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 49
—MRIREE [MERREZ % |
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities No work-related fatalities 49
BRENER RAIEERERMILTHAB KL E E A TR RS HM
B2.1 BT EMH
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury No case of work injuries 49
BREIIEER BEIGEAMNIEEH T5EZ
B2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures The Group currently does N/A
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored not report on this indicator.
BREMIEE  HARTIRAMBERRERT 2EE - WREARTRERS AEEBRNTEMRZESR  TER
B2.3 E fELRE o
Aspects B3: Development and Training
[EMHEBS : =Tl
General Disclosure “Development and Training” 50
—R R [z R
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained and employee category The Group currently does N/A
not report on these
indicators.
BARENER XIEEBES L RESER AEB BT ERZE  TEA
B3.1 EIREL®RE -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  The Group currently does N/A
and employee category not report on these
indicators.
BRESIEER RURNREBEMNES  BRERTKZINTHERE AEB BRI ERZE  TEA
B3.2 EIREL®RE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page
TEHRE EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:0] B
Aspects B4: Labour Standards
B4 & TR
General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 51
— R [ T8
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to “Labour Standards” 51
avoid child and forced labour
FRERIER Hies R ENOERAREE T REH ST [85 TR |
B4.1
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when “Labour Standards” 51
discovered
BRENIEER  HEEERERERR AR A @ISR PR [55 T8 |
B4.2
Aspects B5: Supply Chain Management
EB5 : HregEEs
General Disclosure “Supply Chain 51-52
Management”
—MRIXER [ EIE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by region The Group currently does N/A
not report on this indicator.
BRESIEER RIS HHEREE REB BRI ERZEST  TEA
B5.1 EH s -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number “Supply Chain 51-52
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how Management”
they are implemented and monitored
BRGEIIER HOBEREBHERNED  mERTEBENNHERE [ E IR |
B5.2 B UEAEBRITRERRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RS - HERERBRE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPIs

TRER EFH - -REERBREER

BIgE

BABMER AR ARMIRE
e kERREES (@)

Section Page

B BH

Aspects B6:
[ETH B6 :

KPI B6.1

RS A IR IR

B6.1

KPI B6.2

RS A IR IR

B6.2

KPI B6.3

RS A IR IR

B6.3

KPI B6.4

RS AE IR IR
B6.4

KPI B6.5

RARE RIS
B6.5

Product Responsibility
EmEE

General Disclosure

“Product Responsibility” 53-54

—RR IR [EmET]
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ The Group currently does N/A
for safety and health reasons not report on these

indicators.
PESDERERBEPRELL2EERIEAMANKNEY AEEBRVERZEZEERE TEA
Lt fEH RS o
Number of products and service related complaints received The Group currently does N/A

and how they are dealt with

BRBNE R MRE R B A MBS A

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting

intellectual property rights

T B AR R ABERE R RV B

not report on these
indicators.
AEEB MY ERZSE T
ERRIEL RS -

feit
I

The Group currently does N/A
not report on these
indicators.
REEB R EEE  TEA
EIRVEHIRE -

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility 53-54

ol B S84 B2 MEmEWIERF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and monitored

W E B ERHMRIE RALRBGR

— Quallity Assurance”

[EmEE — ERRF]

“Product Responsibility 54
— Customer data
Information Protection”

C AR ARRETT R EER TR [EmEE —

BEPHBIRERMRE]

2021 5 / SYPHEREBAR DA
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BAEBMER AR ARIMIRE
e kERREES (@)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

Guide (Continued)

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and KPls Section Page

TEHRE EEH —REEREARENESR E=1:0] B

Aspects B7: Anti-corruption

EEBT : RES
General Disclosure “Anti- Corruption” 54-55
— MR [RET]

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices No concluded cases 55
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the case

BRBEIIER RERPAHBETASEEERETEEANE THARN EOBRERN

B7.1 BB MEFLRER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing “Anti- Corruption” 55
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored

FRERIER AP EER R BEIRT - ARBRRITRERTE [REF]

B7.2

Aspects B8: Community Investment

H B8 : HERIRE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 55
—MRIXER [tEKRE ]

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental “Community Investment” 55
concemns, labour needs, health, culture, sport)

BRENIER ZIER®SE(WHE REFH HIFK - 2F- e [tRIE ]

B81 JB.\E K)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area “Community Investment” 55

BREDUER TR IABMSAER (e EER) [HtRIE ]

B8.2

Note: fifsE -

(@ Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, KPIs in this section are  (a) BB ETRAMER27 - AEHOBEREMIEFEEZR

FRERHEE o

recommended disclosures only.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 6 July 2016 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
medical aesthetic services and sale of skin care products.

Business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 17 of
this annual report which forms part of this report of the directors.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.

Government Policies Risk

Following certain adverse incidents in relation to the beauty service
industry in recent years, the Hong Kong Government has been
reviewing the existing legal framework and considering tightening its
supervision over the beauty service industry by promulgating certain
laws and regulations to regulate, among other things, the types of
medical aesthetic procedures that should be performed by registered
medical practitioners. See “Regulatory Overview — Recent
Development in relation to Regulation of Medical Procedures and
Beauty Services, as well as Private Healthcare Facilities” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 for further
details.

EEREEHZ2021F3 A31 HIEFERNR
LERKEZYB®RE -

REVER

RARR2016F7 AR ERSHEAALA
EHESHEAMA L AEREERAR - KA
RIBRMDIERBHAERZHER AR ([BAT])
FIREM o

FERBNEGORE
ARRMEBLBARERN - KAATMBA
AMEEEBARUBBERRYRHEES
EDD °©

WIRE B R BIEDIM R 5 48 AL EEH = 2021
FIAMALFEZEHOB(REAEEE
B2 ATFEEARAEEEBRRAIEER
BR)AIRAFRETZATEMHREEETH
DAL HERAESEEREZ 2
fj\ °
FERER &K THRAREZE
Zﬁlmwﬂﬂﬁ% MERERERRIS
REEAEBELEESEEERNRS
&Tﬂﬂﬁﬂl%m%% o LAT%ZIX;‘%%D?&E@E
ZEe M THAEZE -

Tﬁé

B B R LB
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There is no assurance that the Hong Kong Government will not
impose more stringent laws, rules, regulations or industry standards
in connection with the provision of medical aesthetic services. Any
change in the regulatory framework may render it more restrictive for
us to conduct our business. There is also no assurance that we will
be able to adapt to such changes in a timely manner. In addition,
compliance with such new laws, rules, regulations or industry
standards may significantly increase our operating costs, which may
in turn lower our profit margins. Any of the above-mentioned
circumstances may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Risk of Adverse Economic, Social or Political Conditions
Our business operations are mainly based in and we derive most of
our revenue from Hong Kong. Our business operations and the
demand for our medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care
products are therefore subject to the economic, social and political
conditions in Hong Kong. Furthermore, any incidence of social unrest,
strike, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience in Hong Kong may cause
inconvenience to clients who wish to visit our medical aesthetic
centres and weaken their desire or willingness to undergo medical
aesthetic treatments. Any of the above circumstances may have a
material and adverse impact on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In addition, in the past years, a portion of our revenue was derived
from visitors and tourists from the PRC who do not reside in Hong
Kong. Any reduction in the spending willingness of such PRC visitors
and tourists and any decrease in the number of PRC visitors and
tourists to Hong Kong as a result of anti-mainland sentiment may
significantly reduce our revenue derived from such clients, which
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes business development and environment affairs are highly
related. The Group has implemented certain environmental protection
measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of resources.
These policies were supported by our staff and were implemented
effectively.

In addition, details regarding the Group’s environmental policies and
performance can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 42 to 64 of this annual report.
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Compliance with the Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up
to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group. There was no material
breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this report.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff, customers and suppliers are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We are
committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
86 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend or declare the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be held on
Friday, 24 September 2021. A notice convening the meeting will be
issued and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 20
September 2021 to Friday, 24 September 2021, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 17 September 2021.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 164. The summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2021, in the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of
the Company available for distribution to shareholders under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$58,390,000
(2020: HK$55,970,000).

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$29,000 (2020: HK$29,000).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole shareholder
of the Company by way of written resolutions passed on 19 December
2016 for a term of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2021.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures ~ EERE B {n sk (EHEE 2 #EH)

Save for the Share Options Scheme, at no time during the year were — BREERIRBEST 2SN - KN B PG A4 {n] B ) 48 4
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or B FEFRAEEHXWELA BB 185 AT
debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their HFZAJ#BAKRA BN EREMER
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any  f&F| » sk S INEITHEZEET] AR 7]~ B
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its holding & AT E R B AT REZH B AR TN
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to 5] 57 (F{A] ZBEBU(F & S n] S E M H M E A
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights inany — Ef& 7 :ZZE#EF -

other body corporate.

Directors BE
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of ARAFTRERNREEARERHENESS -
this report were:

Executive Directors BITES

Ms. LAl Ka Yee Gigi (Chairladly and Chief Executive Officer) RINMm A+ (F/EFTEAEE)

Mr. HO Tsz Leung Lincoln (appointed on 22 April 2020) Al F 524 (R 20206 4 A 22 BEZRT)
Dr. LAM Ping Yan (appointed on 15 July 2020) MERBEA (20207 15 HEER(T)
Mr. MA Ting Wai Barry (resigned on 1 July 2020) EREELE (R2020F7 A1 HEHT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYEHTES

Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David P e A4

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo g AN S A

Mr. LI Wai Kwan FRETE

By virtue of article 84 of the articles of association of the Company, IRIEAN A RI4E4E = F2 408155 84 {5 - B & [ 4%
Mr. CHENG Fu Kwok David and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo will retire by A FE ML LR ERERFAFE RS FiRE
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and will, being BT + W HF A B R RFES ERET -
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence AR B RIS IEHTE SRE FTiEA

from each of the INEDs pursuant to the Listing Rules. As at the date gt E B 7 3 H N EE MR K - RAHE H
of this report, the Board considers them to be independent. B EFgRAFRSHEBIAL -

2021 3R/ SHHEREEER AT
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing from the date of
the Listing and continuing thereafter until terminated by either party
by giving not less than three months’ notice in writing to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of 3 years commencing from the date of the
Listing, provided that either the Company or the INEDs may terminate
such appointment at any time by giving at least three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

We have established the Remuneration Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters,
including benefits in kind and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management, after consultation with the
chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer.

Under the remuneration policy of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will consider factors such as corporate and individual
performance, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts

There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the Group has not
operated any other retirement benefit schemes for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the Group
amounted to HK$2,248,000 (2020: HK$2,115,000) for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors from any liabilities and costs arising from the
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company maintains directors and officers
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Biographical Details of Directors
Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 18 to 25 of
the annual report.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2021, so far as the Directors are aware, none of the
Directors, the controlling shareholders and substantial shareholders,
neither themselves nor their respective associates (as defined under
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules) had held any position or had interest in
any businesses or companies that were or might be directly or
indirectly competing with the business of the Group, or gave rise to
any concern regarding conflict of interest.

Disclosure of Interests

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated
Corporation

As at 31 March 2021, interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or
(i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (i) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follow:

a. Long positions in shares of the Company:

A =

R2021F3A31H  MESE  #iEES
TIRBELETERFRESHNEZSENBHEA
(TER EMHRBNESA0K) EEAEE XK

TERK Sk ] RETE A B ok B SR S U S 75 2k
RNElFREEE AL A R - ool M
R EEEENEE -

iR
EBREETHABRES A TR AMAE
ZEZRG AHERAREERZER
R/ KR

MR2021F3A31IH  ARAIEERFE
ABRARBSEA AR EZE(EERLE
REAE GO ([FH RS Wﬁlu)%xv%)ﬂ’]ﬂx
7 - ABERG RERES i‘?&*ﬁ/,\()ﬁﬁf*
&Hﬁfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%xv-‘lg%7&8’\‘B%HA$
BT IRE (BIERIEE %‘&HHEM
fﬁu*ﬁE%kxf)ézg%f’ﬁdzﬁf’mﬁ*ﬁmféé 5 N
B (i) IREBEEFREE K% 352K EF
RZGiEE R MR IOXE 2 i) iR
LR BB 10PTE A LT BT AE S HETT

17 BZ

EHRSOBETRNE AR T R LH MR
ERARIT -

a. REQRRDHFE:

Percentage of

the Company’s

Number of issued

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest shares held share capital
AKARC BT

EENE B HntE RO E RAMNBE DL
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi (“Mrs. Gigi Ma”) Interest of a controlled 275,000,000 68.75%

corporation (Note 1)

R+ ([ERMmLL]) i EE R (1)
Note:
1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright

Group Holdings Limited (“Sunny Bright”), a company beneficially owned as
to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Ma Ting Keung, Patrick (“Mr.
Patrick Ma”). Mr. Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma. Therefore, Mrs.
Gigi Ma is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright
under the SFO.
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b. Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

b. REBEZEROHNFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

Name of associated Capacity/nature of Number of issued

Name of Director corporation interest shares held  share capital

AARBET

EEpE sk Ly B4, E@EtE FEROGEE RANBEIE

Mrs. Gigi Ma Sunny Bright Beneficial owner and 2 100%

interest of spouse
FSERYN M 2+ R EnlER AR BER

Mrs. Gigi Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of 1 issued ordinary BRI+ AT 1REEITEBBRNEE
share of Sunny Bright, representing 50% of the issued share capital BB A - HXAFEE0% E?é‘ﬁﬂx$ &5
of Sunny Bright. Mr. Patrick Ma is the legal and beneficial owner of B EEABAE B IREFTEBROEER

the other 1 issued ordinary share of Sunny Bright, representing the
remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Sunny Bright. As Mr.
Patrick Ma is the spouse of Mrs. Gigi Ma, Mrs. Gigi Ma is deemed to
be interested in all the interest registered in Mr. Patrick Ma’s name in
Sunny Bright. Accordingly, together with the 50% shareholding
interest in Sunny Bright registered in Mrs. Gigi Ma’s name, Mrs. Gigi
Ma is taken to be interested in 100% of the issued share capital of
Sunny Bright.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange; or (ii)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

BB TR THE0%EBITIRA -
MR BEREE RS RINM L THES - H
MMEZETHERAREEANETEREELEER
M EmTEEE - EItL - @Ht J LA
Y25 EELHE0%E - F3Hm
TR R/ HFE E’J1OO%E§§°TTHX$¢'%‘EE
MR o

Br EXXATIEEE SN - 72021 F3 8318 » #
BANREEREBITRABRAARSEM
ﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ@(m%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ 5 & 51 58 XV 5)
Bk - HEARMEREES  EERANR

EEF RS (I*1§IJ%XV*B%7&8"*B%H@$
RERBR AN ERSIOAR (BREREESF K

HERPIAR MXE@VE@MET’E%%E’J%E&M
B) ¢ k(i) RIRE 75 M B 5R 0] 58 352 1R & 5
RZIEAIEE LM BRIORE + R RIE
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the person
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) or
company which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follow:

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2021, other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following
persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the shares or
the underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or required to be recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares of the Company:

T ERRR AR E A MR
2R K TORR

MR2021F3A31H » THAL(RRAREER
FBITHABRIN KA REEABRIEES &
HEEHE 336 KRETEATE 2 B ftaiE
wRRBIT

TEBEBEE - R2021FE3A31H  BRARA
EERFEBITHABN  TIAL BERA
DA AR RERR (0 P HE B B IR IR B 5 K B
EIEFIEXVEE 2 R 3D Em AR A H TN E
RIEES RSG5 336 IS EATFREZ
Rpal B frgEzE=AR

RAERTRGIEE :

Percentage of

the Company’s
issued

Number of
shares held/

Name Capacity/Nature of interest interested share capital
e To) AATE BT

wEEB B HEntE RO E RAMNBE DL

Sunny Bright Beneficial Owner 275,000,000 68.75%

S EndaA

Mr. Patrick Ma Interest in a controlled corporation 275,000,000 68.75%

and interest of spouse (Note 1)
BTt RiEdEE R REL AR (1)
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 20,000,000 5%

(Note 2)

PIEREFRD AR AR RimHAE S (MEE2)

Notes:

1. Such 275,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of Sunny Bright, a company
beneficially owned as to 50% by Mrs. Gigi Ma and 50% by Mr. Patrick Ma. Mrs.
Gigi Ma is the spouse of Mr. Patrick Ma. Accordingly, Mr. Patrick Ma is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sunny Bright under the SFO.
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2. Such 20,000,000 shares are registered in the name of CSI Capital Management
Limited. According to record, CSI Capital Management Limited is wholly owned
by CITIC CLSA Global Markets Holdings Limited. CITIC CLSA Global Markets
Holdings Limited is wholly owned by CLSA B.V. CLSA B.V. is wholly owned by
CITIC Securities International Company Limited. CITIC Securities International
Company Limited is wholly owned by CITIC Securities Company Limited. CITIC
Securities Company Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares held by CSI
Capital Management Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021 and so far as known
to the Directors, no person, other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/or Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or
any Associated Corporation” above, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers
For the year ended 31 March 2021, the percentage of revenue
derived from our five largest clients in aggregate was less than 1.4%
(2020: 0.9%) of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, purchases from our largest
supplier accounted for approximately 31.1% (2020: 15.9%) of the
Group’s total purchases. For the year ended 31 March 2021, our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 64.1%
(2020: 53.3%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers or customers.

2. 20,000,000 A% % 1 LA CSI Capital Management

Limited® #& & & B & 52 & - CSI Capital
Management Limited f8 CITIC CLSA Global
Markets Holdings Limited 2 & # 75 ° CITIC CLSA
Global Markets Holdings Limited (5 CLSA B.V. &
BB CLSABV.HHAETHBEBEARAT2
BHWA FEALFEBEERABAFEIESFRKRS
ERARZEHER - B FREBEIEAIEXV B
= REIEFERG BR A B R AR CSI Capital
Management Limited Fi 5 5 89 iR 1) 7 #E B #E 25 o

Br EXXCFr#EEEE SN - 7R2021 43 431 H &3t
EEMM TEAT(AESEHIIN EX &
ERTETHRABRAR R R AEREE LB 2
Bfn - AERARR D R EEF 2 R &K E ]
—HARAEEREBITHRAERIN S
RAREERARABIRG ARG P B A
RAE B H R HAE 40155 336 IR ALk E A A R)ZA
GEzERMHOERIORE -

EEAH
R T R AR A AR S
KED LI ERRITHAL -

FEHRERLAER
HZE2021F3A3IBILFE  REKRMAK
BEMBEE LA XD REAEERKEE1.4%
(20204F : 0.9%) °

HE2021F3A3BILEFE  REKRMEK
HEANEBEOASEEMERBEN31.1%
(20204 : 15.9%)  H £2021F3A31H 1k
FE - BN AAEESE REAEEERE
EE4964.1% (2020 4F : 53.3%) °
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Connected Transactions

The “related party transactions” as disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

There were no other non-exempt connected and continuing
connected transactions during the reporting period.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required by
the Listing Rules in the reporting period.

Compliance of Non-Competition Undertaking

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 30 December
2016, pursuant to the non-competition undertakings set out in the
deed of non-competition dated 19 December 2016, each of our
controlling shareholders, namely, Sunny Bright Group Holdings
Limited, Mrs. Gigi Ma and Mr. Patrick Ma (collectively the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have undertaken to the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them
does not or will not, and will procure each of their respective close
associates not to, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate in, be
engaged, interested directly or indirectly, either for their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of or for any other person in any
business in competition with or similar to or is likely to be in
competition with the business of the Group upon the Listing of the
Company. Details of the deed of non-competition are set out in the
paragraph headed “Non-Competition Deed” in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 December 2016.

The INEDs have reviewed the implementation of the deed of non-
competition and are of the view that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with their undertakings given under the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Equity-Linked Agreements
Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
26 to 41 of the annual report.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 20 May 2021, the Company, as lessee, and The Peninsula Hotel
Limited, as lessor, entered into the lease agreement in respect of the
lease of the whole 16th Floor, The Peninsula Office Tower, which shall
commence from 1 August 2021 and expire on 31 July 2027 (both
days inclusive). The Company plans to use this premises as medical
aesthetic centre and for the sale of skin care products.

On 21 May 2021, the Company, as lessee, and New World Tower
Company Limited, as lessor, entered into the lease agreements in
respect of the lease of the 10th Floor and 11th Floor of New World
Tower ll, which commenced from 22 May 2021 and expire on 15
November 2024 (both days inclusive), and shall commence from 16
November 2021 and expire on 15 November 2024 (both days
inclusive), respectively. The Company plans to use these premises as
medical aesthetic centres.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Ernst & Young
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
LAI Ka Yee Gigi

Chairlady

Hong Kong, 18 June 2021
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e
EY:

To the shareholders of Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Miricor
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 86 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to the matter. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRESEE

AR IE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAWETMMESERETSE

Revenue recognition from prepaid packages

XK 8 PR A2 6 Y 55 AR

Revenue from treatment services is recognised when such
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Customers who may not exercise all of the contractual
rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service
period, and such unutilised portion are referred to as
breakage.

The Group recognised an expected breakage amount as
revenue in proportion to the historical pattern of rights
exercised by the customers. Upon expiry of the service
period, the unutilised portion of the prepaid packages is
fully recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2021, the
carrying amount of contract liabilities amounted to
HK$154,240,000. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
revenue recognised from treatment services amounted to
HK$108,417,000.

The determination of the expected breakage amount
involves management’s estimate based on the Group’s
historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages.
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of
the expired prepaid packages involves significant
management’s judgement to determine the appropriate
timing when the obligations to provide services are
considered to be expired based on the Group’s forfeiture

policy.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 5 and 22
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included:
° obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy in relation to prepaid packages;

° assessing the estimates used in the determination of
expected breakage amount such as historical
experience on the utilisation of prepaid packages by
examining the related usage records and comparing
to the actual usage records on a sampling basis;
and

° testing the internal controls and checking the
calculation of revenue recognised related to the
unutilised portion of the expired prepaid packages
by examining the underlying sales contracts and
related records on a sampling basis.
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEEEE

FRETEH®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ZE AN B R A B IS TR R A ER
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) ST )

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we {tHEZEZE 5@ EET  ROETHE
determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the IEHAHGEMERENEIHZAEAEE AW
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is  #EKEEEETEIE - RIOIEZEENR S P
therefore the key audit matter. We describe the matter in our auditor's &= 18 > BIEEARER I F LA AFAREES
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the — I8 - sifEfREZFE R AER T » RS IEBFEHIFE
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thata  FH{IHET /BB EFEERNE EE RBBRE
matter should not be communicated in our report because the 4B ARFZ » BIPRE TEEREDBEBZ
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 218

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent ! B ARG T #Z SRR ERETEE 5B AR

auditor’s report is Yen Kai Shun, Catherine. BN

Ernst & Young ZXREHENERFT
Certified Public Accountants HEEEED

27/F, One Taikoo Place HEHIEE

979 King’s Road FEBEITIHR
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong RKah— o7&
18 June 2021 202146 A18H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEsREMZEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HZE2021 F3B31 HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E TERx FETT
REVENUE I &5 5 128,871 176,529
Other income H A 5 12,753 4,139
Cost of inventories and consumables 135 % & # @A A (12,990) (17,473
Staff costs BTIAR (70,889) (81,844)
Property rentals and related expenses %84 MBI (21,166) (22,471)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERBETE
equipment (12,971) (12,336)
Other expenses HAtbFZ (37,976) (28,664)
Finance costs ZUp I RN 7 (1,849) (2,211)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBADER(BR) 6 (16,217) 15,669
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisgige,/ (FAx) 10 3,564 (2,113)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR RNREEAENL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS FERF(FHE)
OF THE COMPANY (12,653) 13,556
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hft2@E&E#E
Other comprehensive loss that may REZBBAIEEETDES
be reclassified to profit or loss BamE M2 mEIE
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation &G INEFSHIE 3 =58
of foreign operations (4) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KARBEEANEGFEE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE 2mEWE(FE) 8
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (12,657) 13,556
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE RKATEERERS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY B8 AEG
EQUITY HOLDERS OF BRER,(&HE)
THE COMPANY
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 12 HK(3.16) cents  HK3.39 cents
(3.16) &1l 3.39 711l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RN KR
As at 31 March 2021
M2021%F3 A31H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B TExT FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MEKRERE 13 34,498 39,491
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(a) 42,719 50,310
Goodwill R 15 4,305 4,305
Deposits e 18 5,820 9,540
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIBE B 24 6,815 3,179
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 94,157 106,825
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 16 14,154 14,320
Trade receivables B 5 BRI 17 16,263 7,974
Prepayments, other receivables TERTRUR - HAn U ARSK
and other assets NEMEE 18 24,966 12,141
Tax recoverable Al Y B I8 3,476 3,204
Pledged time deposits [REEECITSERES 19 57,346 55,460
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRSEEY 19 161,773 157,327
Total current assets MEEEBE 277,978 250,426
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B ST ERK 20 2,076 338
Other payables and accruals Hip IR N BT E 21 6,616 6,067
Contract liabilities and deferred revenue & %18 & MIEE NS 22 168,182 135,675
Provision for reinstatement costs 1B18 Al AN 23 483 1,825
Lease liabilities MEaE 14(b) 16,948 15,690
Tax payable FERTRRIE = 933
Total current liabilities MEE B 194,305 160,528
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 83,673 89,898
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 177,830 196,723
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE B AR R &
As at 31 March 2021
720213 H31H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5T TExT FE&TT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FnBAE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 24 1,604 1,594
Provision for reinstatement costs B AN B 23 5,114 4,085
Lease liabilities HEBE 14(b) 25,538 32,813
Total non-current liabilities ERBRERRE 32,256 38,492
Net assets BEEE 145,574 158,231

EQUITY =

Issued capital BEITIRA 25 4,000 4,000
Reserves & 27 141,574 154,231
Total equity EmAaE 145,574 158,231

Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi

BHmzt
Director

EE

88  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021

Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln
AFE=EE
Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRBHR
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31 HIEFE

Share
Issued  premium Merger Exchange  Retained Total
capital account reserve reserve profits equity
BRT i) aff 37 RE 52
EN REE 1] e A k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT T FHT FHT
(Note 27)
(PsE27)
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 A1 H 4,000 67,788 4,995 - 67,892 144,675
Profit for the year and FERMREE
total comprehensive income 2 EEE
for the year - - - - 13,556 13,556
At 31 March 2020 and R2020F3A31 B K
1 April 2020 2020F4 A1 H 4,000 67,788* 4,995 - 81,448 158,231
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (12,653)  (12,659)
Other comprehensive loss FEAMZARA
for the year - - - (4) - (4)
Total comprehensive loss FEABELE
for the year - - - (4) (12,653) (12,657)
Reclassification ENOE - - (4,995) - 4,995 -
At 31 March 2021 20213318 4,000 67,788* - (@¢ 73,790 145574

*

” ZERBEFEBEGRAUBHRARNER 2GS RBE
141,574,000 7 (2020 4F : 154,231,000/ 7T)

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$141,574,000
(2020: HK$154,231,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= ho~—1
ii7 \éiﬁﬁ ﬁ%ﬂs—%
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FERT Fi&T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRSRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF(B8) (16,217) 15,669
Adjustments for: HTHEIEAE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENMBREITE
equipment 6 12,971 12,336
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERTE 6 18,329 17,932
Interest income FBUA 5 (2,739) (3,968)
Finance costs B T A N 7 1,849 2,211
COVID-19-related rent concessions HLETE A AR R AR SRR (2,055) -
Termination of leases ME&IE 55 -
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HEMEME - W&
property, plant and equipment, net KRG R 5 6 269 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net B SRR E TR 6 100 2
12,562 44,182
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(Em) 166 (6,368)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B 5 FEUBREZOR 2 (3E 1) (8,391) 18,026
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TE IR - HA BRI
other receivables and other assets Ha&EE®RAD,(3Em) (12,678) 673
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B SRMAERFIE M Chd) 1,737 978)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEmEMERNETER
and accruals #nCrd) 549 (3,533)
Increase in contract liabilities and EHBEEE R E N
deferred revenue 32,507 17,618
Decrease in provision for BB R AT
reinstatement costs (419) -
Increase in pledged time deposits AR T HAF BUg N (1,886) (1,191)
Cash generated from operations MEEBEERNIRE 24,147 68,429
Interest received BURERLFI B 3,504 3,606
Interest paid BAFE (1,849) (2,211)
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net B EENEHFE (1,267) (6,319
Net cash flows from operating activities & & EBFSIR S RS F5E 24,535 63,505
CASH FLOWS FROM REZDFERERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWME  WEMKEEREE
plant and equipment (5,343) (8,508)
Deposits paid for the purchase of items  BEEE  MERZFHEERH
of property, plant and equipment Bfire (119) (1,499
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - FEMREIEER
property, plant and equipment FriSsRIE 34 -
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits 7 AR R EHI B #2:8 =18 A
with original maturity of more than Fy SR E BRTF SOR
three months when acquired 57,625 36,125
Net cash flows from investing activites & /EZEFTER SR EH5E 52,197 26,122
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mMEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BHZE2021F3A31 HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FERT FHEIT
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ®EEFEREHERE
ACTIVITY
Principal portion of lease payments AENZNAE D (14,650) (15,372)
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERRSEEYRMFHE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 62,082 74,255
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HIEE MIEEEED
of year 85,574 11,319
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 4N [&E =& B 1) g2 2 F %8
net (11) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S RHWRERRLZEY
END OF YEAR 147,645 85,574
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B&RBEESZEWEL
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 2 A7
Cash and bank balances e RIRITES 23,255 7,321
Non-pledged time deposits with original — #8E AR JR E|Ef H
maturity of three months or less TEB=EAH
when acquired 48 3 E BRI 5K 124,390 78,253
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 A B R | H1 H
maturity of more than three months HBid=1E A H
when acquired B E HE R 14,128 71,753
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERE AR KA
in the consolidated statement of BERIRSEEY
financial position 19 161,773 157,327
Non-pledged time deposits with original 7 A B R 1| H1 B
maturity of more than three months HBid=1E A H
when acquired B HER (14,128) (71,753)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ERESREXRMYVBES R
in the consolidated statement of BeEEY
cash flows 147,645 85,574
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Room
1605, 16th Floor, Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in the
provision of medical aesthetic services and the sale of skin care
products.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company is Sunny
Bright Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follow:

~EIMEEER
ARAlp—HERSHS MKz mE
HMEeARAT - ARFMEMMFEEH
1 4 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands © K A A K+ Z & ¥ i
BN B AR SR EE 77 SRS EAR O
16121605 % °

RABRBREERAT > MARBMN B
REAETBUERHEEXBTRBELHEE
EEEM e

EERA ARAWNEERERRAREE
BRI AR R ERBR AR (—EAR
RBREZESEMRINAF) -

MELRZER
ARBEEHBATZFHBWT

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARREERER DI
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
ML IR BRI
A% XN ERRRE Ef Mg FBEER
Coresmax Group British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (‘BVI")
EBRIHES 1% RERR
([REEXEE])
Miricor Beauty (BVI) Limited BVI USS$1 100 - Investment holding
EBRAHE e REER
G Max Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
services
B 18T REERRE
Miricor Beauty (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
EMER (FB)ERRA B 18T HEEEER
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
Limited aesthetic services
B 18T REBEXBTRG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

NalREBEER &)
ME AT Z &R ()

Percentage of equity

attributable to the Company

RAREERERDH
Place of
incorporation Issued ordinary
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
Bl Ave:E S BRI
8 EXHH EBRERRA B Mg TEEE
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
(Central) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T REBEETRE
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
(CWB) Limited aesthetic services
B 18T REBEETRE
CM Technology Development ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of management
Limited services
B 1AL REER RS
CMIP Limited BVI USS$1 - 100 Owner of trademarks
ZREBR AT HERAHE 1% BIRHEA A
Cos Max E-Commerce Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Sale of skin care products
B 1AL HEZEEM
Cos Max Medical Centre Hong Kong HK$300,000 - 100  Provision of medical
(TST) Limited aesthetic services
BE 300,000 7T RUBEXTRYG
Vitae Wellness Beauty Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Provision of medical
aesthetic services
B 18T REBEETRE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had issued any debt
securities at the end of the reporting period.

ERMIDESRREAREAFER
BMAEAFESIEAKBEEFETR
MO ZARBMBLRA - EERRIIH
HitfB ARz FHEerREANITE

RBEHR - HEARAMBLAC#
TTEMAIEBES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation 2.1 fRBUEAE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued) 21 WBEEAE (#)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

REEEE)

i~ m 2 MR TN EARBEF
ZHEHARA B2 A HRER
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BRARA 2 EAFE A RIFZERE
@ AU RS S BORER RS R B
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@ WA A RREREENEET
AR 2 BRI -
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e EERREHBIRET - WEKAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 2.2 &35 & 55 2 &

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) and the
following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Except for the early adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 16,
the adoption of the Conceptual Framework and these revised
standards did not have a significant effect on the Group’s
financial statements or accounting policies.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if () the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group’s medical aesthetic
centres and office premises have been reduced by the lessors
as a result of the pandemic and there are no other changes to
the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on 1 April 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions granted by the
lessors as a result of the pandemic during the year ended 31
March 2021. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of HK$2,055,000 has been
accounted for as a variable lease payment by derecognising
part of the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HE2021F3A31HILFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021°

Insurance Contracts*

Insurance Contracts*”

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current* ¢

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies*

Definition of Accounting
Estimates*

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction*

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract®

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 413
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Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

! As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERNE BT

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong 2.3 EEMERKRERDEBTF

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under
the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to
contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the
sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 March. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHREBRE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assets takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
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whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—H — ZHEREBESAENE
markets for identical assets or liabilities BmH 2 ME CREHAEE)

Level2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the FoH — BRYRATFEAEBEZ
lowest level input that is significant to the fair CHREFHAEATE
value measurement is observable, either EEEERGER
directly or indirectly iy

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the F=H — BRYRTFEAEBEZ
lowest level input that is significant to the fair ZHRELHEAELETA
value measurement is unobservable B 2 (HEHEM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that fair values are disclosed in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follow:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

or 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Treatment devices 20%
Tools and equipment 25%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHRERE @)

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Leases HE
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract LK;% RENRERTHAEORE A
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the BEHRE - HEe L BBEAE MM

contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the underlying lease terms.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

108  MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021

24 TESHHERBE @)

HE (&)
AEBMEREBA ()

@

©)

EHEEE
AEEREERM®K A BNEREE
ERNHERER)BRAERAEE
E o (£ MR EERRARER RET
WERRERBEE  WHEHT
EHERGEFLRAE - ERAEEE
A BN A Hsk 2 ATE HER
HERENTE CEANTNRE
BERAREEHOEENR - IR
ERDRHEESR - ER - EH
BEEXRATNBERE - BIRER
BEENEREFE R EEA
e EAEEERARBEMZER
EITE -

R EREREEEENEAE
EEREAKESRNARRBEERE
REITR - AEARIBEEMNMEE
A ERFHEE

HERE
REERG RS AEEREHA
FHNEENRREEREER
B HEMNKBEEENR(BHE
B EE M) AT R EE
B BURRIEHEN EN A 2HE
MRA R FARERREEERT X
HoERE - HENKNBEAEE
BEMEETENBEEREZTT
FEMRREHRRAEETER
ERIDRERERITAEF K
Tﬁ°l#ﬁ&ﬂ?§ﬁﬂ%m7
HHENFTRERNRNEFRB
IR AR RER A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

()

Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of

purchase option).
other equipment that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group may consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities at
amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials and other direct costs. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTHBEBRE @)

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

(@ Provision of medical aesthetic services
Revenue from treatment services, medical consultation
services, prescription and dispensing of medical products
are recognised when the services have been rendered to
customers.

Prepaid treatment services not yet rendered, which are
non-refundable, are deferred and reported as contract
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Customers who may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid packages upon expiry of
the service period, and such unutilised portion are referred
to as breakage. The Group recognised an expected
breakage amount as revenue in proportion to the
historical pattern of rights exercised by the customers.
Upon expiry of the service period, the unutilised portion of
the prepaid packages are fully recognised in profit or loss.
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BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHEBRE @)

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) WS TERR ()
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFAHWE(E)

(b)  Sale of skin care products
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
clients.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before
the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, costs
incurred to obtain a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if the costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 24 FESTTHERE @)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue recognition from unutilised prepaid packages
The recognition of revenue from the unutilised portion of the
expired prepaid packages involves significant management’s
judgement to determine the appropriate timing when the
obligations to provide services are considered to be expired
based on the Group’s forfeiture policy and hence the
recognition criteria for the related revenue are met in
accordance with the accounting policy for revenue recognition
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Utilisation pattern of medical aesthetic services
Customers who may not exercise all the contractual rights of
the prepaid packages upon expiry of the service period, and
such unutilised portion are referred to as breakage. The Group
determines the expected breakage amount with reference to
the Group’s historical experience on the utilisation of prepaid
packages. Estimates of expected breakage amount are
sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Group’s past
experience may not be representative of the actual outcome in
the future.
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BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details are included in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use
assets) at the end of each reporting period. The non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e. customer type).
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BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(Continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the medical aesthetic services sector, the historical default rates
are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as market
interest rates and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates.
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Significant Accounting Judgement and
Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

Operating Segment Information

The Group has one reportable operating segment, namely the
non-surgical medical aesthetic services segment, and is
principally engaged in the provision of medical aesthetic
services and the sale of skin care products in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Information
reported to the Group’s management, for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment, focuses on
the operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s
resources are integrated and therefore no discrete operating
segment financial information is available. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Information about geographical areas

The following tables set out geographical information about
revenue from external customers for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 and non-current assets as at 31 March 2021
and 2020.

(@) Revenue from external customers

BEREFHIE K& @)

fhEt TRERE (&)

EEBREE
APAREBEROERSELRAE
B - BEATIR SRR AT 6L A R A
VAR S5 3% B3 1R » FERETE A] FERR A AR T Y
HEESHER  EEEARBEAELR
B ] - R OR B RR B0 A1) B9 7K F R R 2R
IRt BI SRR 1 H E A HIET -

AEEE— 1ITE#EaLﬁﬁB(ED3F$?ﬁ
HEBXTRBA M) LEEREFBLSD
FARKME((HE ) RHFRHESE
BR ARIHEEEEMR - ARAE
BMERG—RE AL EARLEED
MY BERAR  #RERDERESE
AHEmMAEEERE 2 RNERIARE
l”aaﬁ“%%iﬁﬁi Rt - I &2 5
BOEER -

ih & & R

T &R #H 5 & =2021 F X 20204 3 A 31
HIEFEABARBEIIEEP I - A
72021 F K 2020 3 A31 H By Ik
FEENMREER

(@) RBIEHEF

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Hong Kong &5 126,057 176,529
The PRC s 2,814 -
128,871 176,529

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the services provided or products delivered.
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4. QOperating Segment Information (Continued)
Information about geographical areas (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets

BN IER (#)
HEER (F)
b) FRBEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

Tz FHEIT

Hong Kong 55 80,427 98,236
The PRC s 1,214 -
81,641 98,236

The non-current asset information above is based on the
location of the assets and excludes financial assets and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major clients

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single client of the
Group has accounted for over 10% of the Group’s total revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, no
information about major clients in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

IR EENEMREEEN
UEEL  BTEEsREENRE
ERIBEE °

IFREFEH

B 202143 H31H k202043 A 31
BIEFE  ARAKERE-FPHME
HEELNKEY BIEBBASEAIK
BA10% - MY E\RBEEEF K REE
AIE8HREESH2INTBEFER -

5. Revenue and Other Income Woas & B A A
An analysis of revenue is as follow: WD TIAT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with BEEEHWE
customers
Treatment services BERERB 108,417 156,601
Skin care products EEEMm 19,915 18,636
Medical consultation services BB RIS 31 138
Prescription and dispensing of Ba 77 M fic 22 PR 7%
medical products 508 1,154
128,871 176,529
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued) 5. WamkEMUA )
Revenue from contracts with customers - e L&
() Disaggregated revenue information i) ZHFVKEER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Types of goods or services ERSREESE
Sale of skin care products HEEEESD 19,915 18,636
Provision of medical aesthetic IRHEEARSE
services 108,956 157,893
Total revenue from contracts ERABE
with customers 128,871 176,529
Geographical markets i T 35
Hong Kong B 126,057 176,529
The PRC == 2,814 _
Total revenue from contracts BEA X BN
with customers 128,871 176,529
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 FE R BF
Goods or services transferred TR EEE R
at a point in time 20,454 19,928
Services transferred over time PR R R AR TS 108,417 156,601
Total revenue from contracts BEA XIS
with customers 128,871 176,529
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Wz &

EF
(i)

HaUgA (@)

B (B)
PIFUGRER ()
TRERAREHRANN]S
% ARSEIARSBINA Y
=X,

pilts

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FH&TT
Revenue recognised that was STARSHVENEED
included in contract liabilities at BRI ¢
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Treatment services BIERS 42,882 55,160
Skin care products EEEMD 155 4
43,037 55,164

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Provision of medical aesthetic services

The performance obligation associated with treatment
services is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered. The performance obligations associated with
medical consultation services and prescription and
dispensing of medical products are satisfied at the point
in time when the services are rendered.

Sale of skin care products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the skin care products and payment is mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement, except for corporate
customers, where payment is due within 2 to 30 days
from delivery.

(ii)
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5. Revenue and Other Income (Continued)

W R E U A ()

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEEHWNE (&)
(i) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BREEE)
An analysis of other income is as follow: HiW AT :
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FHIT
Other income Hepg A
Bank interest income HRATH B A 2,739 3,968
Government subsidies BT Eh (a) 9,625 -
Others HAh, 389 171
12,753 4,139

() The government subsidies represent subsidies received under the
Employment Support Scheme and the applicable subsidy scheme
under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. There were no unfulfiled conditions
or contingencies relating to the subsidies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

6. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 6. BREIATEF,(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBFBBBATGEMN (EBE) L&
(crediting): B (GEA) THI & EEEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEAEFECHENK
measurement of lease liabilities 296 246
Employee benefit expenses EEBARX
(excluding Directors’ remuneration (TBREESEME (MiFs))
(note 8)):
Salaries, bonuses and other allowances e - JE4 R H Mt REL 60,516 73,117
Retirement benefit RREFIET IR
scheme contributions (EREHEFETED
(defined contribution scheme) 2,213 2,097
62,729 75,214
Auditor’s remuneration AT = 1,650 1,650
Depreciation of property, Y BB MR EITE
plant and equipment 12,971 12,336
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18,329 17,932
Impairment of trade receivables, net B S EWRFUREFEE 100 2
Loss on disposal/write-off of items of HEMEYE - BE&
property, plant and equipment, net HEIEE BEEE 269 -
Foreign exchange differences, net b ZE R (176) 5
7. Finance Costs 7. BIESEKAR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,849 2,211
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B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

8. Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follow:

EEME
BEEABAERXSMBRAG([HR
Fr&EHEMRA - BB QRIEHE
383(1)@) * (0) * O KGR RE(HKEE
EREER) RO 2D BB AFE
EEMemT :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Fees we 962 612

Other emoluments: =

Salaries and allowances Fre KoEEh 7,163 6,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B & Fl| 5+ &It 2

(defined contribution scheme) (EEEHREED) 35 18

7,198 6,018

8,160 6,630

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follow:

() BUFHTES
RERRBILIFNTESZHME
TN

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Mr. Cheng Fu Kwok David E Y 5 A 204 204
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BRGNS £ 204 204
Mr. Li Wai Kwan TRELE 204 204
612 612

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EEMe )
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees inkind contributions Total
e 2R RIKER

wE KREVEAN STEIMR @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR TR TR

Year ended 31 March 2021 BZE2021 3831 ALLEE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi RN 2 £ - 5,398 18 5,416
Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln " Al F= a0 - 1,765 17 1,782
Dr. Lam Ping Yan 1! HREBED 350 - - 350
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry ™ EREELELm - - - -
350 7,163 35 7,548
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZ2020F3 831 HILEFE
Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi Byimat - 6,000 18 6,018
Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry SEERAE - - - -
- 6,000 18 6,018
() Mr. Ho Tsz Leung Lincoln was appointed as an Executive Director () AFREECBEZEARTES 8
with effect from 22 April 2020. 2020 4 A 22 HEARK ©
(0] Dr. Lam Ping Yan was appointed as an Executive Director with () MREBECEZETARTES 8
effect from 15 July 2020. 20207 A15 HBAER ©
() Mr. Ma Ting Wai Barry was resigned as an Executive Director with iy  HFEERLECDEHIENTES - 852020
effect from 1 July 2020. F7A1BREER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors (Continued)
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020:
Nil).

During the year, Ms. Lai Ka Yee Gigi and Mr. Ho Tsz
Leung Lincoln waived remuneration of HK$450,000 and
HK$102,000, respectively (2020: Nil).

9. Five Highest Paid Employees
The five highest paid employees included two (2020: one)
Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2020:

8.

B2 @)

b) BTE=®)
ER - AEBEBEETAEELM
S - fEBMAKREB KA
72 B 14 7 45 ) S B B A 18 (2020
F:E) .

FR - BIMMEZERATFREED
Bl 7 ZE 450,000 7T & 102,000 %
TCEIENS (20204 : &) -

hesadFES

hEESFHHES B HA (20204 -
—H)EE - HFPFBEN LxXHEs .
HHB=F(2020F : MR FEZZaH

four) non-director highest paid employees are as follow: B B B BIzEIS 0T -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Salaries and allowances e KoL 9,254 15,5635
Retirement benefit scheme contributions Rk F 5T 2142 48 63
9,302 15,598

The number of the non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follow:

FHNFUATHRENFFEER T HE
ZEOPN ¢

Number of employees

BEAZ

2021 2020

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T E 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7T Z& 3,000,000 8 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& 7T & 3,500,000 78 7T 2 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T E 4,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T & 5,000,000 8 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 /& 7T & 5,500,000 78 7T - 1
3 4
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

10. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 10. FTSRiRS (%)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% BEARESHOIBEFARBEELENR
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in = OE R OB S A %16.5% (20204 ¢
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the 16.5%) BT EET IR - IR AR B —
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits W AT - 32T AMNE TR
tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) BETITHAEEREE - ZMBARA
of assessable profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and 2,000,000 T (2020 : 2,000,000 %
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. 7T ) FERR R E 732 8.25% MO B R 4N EL - &4
T FE ER A 5 ) Bl H216.5% RO B 2R AR A

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FH&TT

Current BER

— Charge for the year — FRIH 83 3,559
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFEBERE (21) )
Deferred tax (note 24) RIERTE (I 5E24) (3,626) (1,443)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRABEIL () B5E (3,564) 2,113

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax
expense/(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follow:

REBEEMEREBRBANEF,(F
BFTENRIEBERS (BR) iR AEH
ERHEFENRERSY (KE) MY
RN

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before tax BEADEF(BEB) (16,217) 15,669
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETERLE16.5% 5T (2,676) 2,585
Adjustments in respect of current tax B EFERNERF 18
of previous years {EL FH%E (21) ©)]
Income not subject to tax AR (2,083) (654)
Expenses not deductible for tax ATHOF A &2 923 475
Others HA 293 (290)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s BASEERBHEAERESL L
effective rate (2021: 22.0%; 2020: 13.5%) /(%) (2021 € : 22.0%
20204 : 13.5%) (3,564) 2,113
11. Dividend 1. K&
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 HZE2021F3 A3 HILFE  HERN
March 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the SEBRNKE  BREHARURITE

end of the reporting period (2020: Nil).

ERIRERRE (20204F : ) ©
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B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

12. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of HK$12,653,000 (2020: profit of
HK$13,556,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 400,000,000 (2020: 400,000,000 in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

12.

RRRIE BB ERETA ARG
gRAEMN,(E18)
BREARBF(BER)WSEDRIE
AARERRERFEAERBGESRF
M &5 $812,658,0007%8 JT (20204 : & )
13,556,000 % 7T ) K 5 A B 31T B AR A
o0 #E F 15 $400,000,000 i (2020 £ :
400,000,000 f%) 5T &5 °

HZE2021F3 A31 H %2020 3 A31 H
IHFE - REBEWEDBITELEE LR
A% o

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. W% -~ BB L&E
Leasehold Furniture ~ Treatment  Tools and Office Motor ~ Computer
improvements  and fixtures devices  equipment  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
HENERE  BERRE BEEE IAREE BLOERE A& BlRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR Thr Thn TR Tén TR TR
31 March 2021 021%53A31A
At 31 March 2020 and R2020E3A3N AR
1 April 2020; N0E4R1E
Cost i 35,170 2,24 44,641 3,672 531 2,351 5,639 94,208
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHE (16,097) (956) (30,383) (1,918) (370) (1,993) (3,020) (54,737)
Net carrying amount KE3E 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 358 2,619 39,491
At 1 April 2020 R0NF4A1A 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 358 2,619 39,491
Addftions RE 518 56 3,201 290 8 - 4,162 8,210
Depreciation provided during - AT EEE
the year (5,538) (368) (5,101) (746) (50) (126) (1,042) (129M)
Disposal/wite-of e /M - (6) (19 ) - - (210) (303)
Exchange realignment Ei#% 1 - - 1 - - 9 11
At 31 March 2021, et of R2021E3A31E
accumulated depreciation BB Z5TE 14,054 950 12,339 1,201 154 232 5478 34,498
At 31 March 2021; ROANEIA3NA:
Cost i 35,410 2,218 47,634 3,895 574 2,351 9,358 101,440
Accumulated depreciation  Z3f#E (21,356) (1,268) (35,295) (2,604) (420) 2,119 (3,880) (66,942)
Net carrying amount FEFE 14,054 950 12,339 1,201 154 23 5478 34,498
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

13. W% » WE Mk @)

Leasehold Fumiture Treatment Tools and (ffice Motor Computer
improvements ~ and fixtures devices equipment equipment vehicles equipment Total
HENERE  KERRE Bk TARRE  BAZERE ot HEE hy
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR AR TR Thn AR iR Thn T
31 March 2020 2020%3A31A
At1 April 2019: R19E4A18 :
Cost B 34,438 1,706 38,839 3,200 397 2,351 4457 85,388
Accumulated depreciation  Z5tH1E (10,736) (649) (5402 (1222) (330) (1,867) (2224) 42.429)
Net carrying amount FEFE 23,702 1,058 13437 1978 67 484 2233 42,959
At1 April 2019 R019E4A18 23,702 1,088 13,437 1978 67 484 2,033 42,959
Additions RE 732 546 5,802 47 134 - 1,182 8,868
Depreciation provided during R E R
the year (5,361) (33) (4981) 696) (40) (126) (79) (12,33)
At31 March 2020, netof 1202063 A31H -
accumulated depreciation 21K 237E 19,073 1,68 14,258 1,754 161 358 2619 39491
At 31 March 2020: R2020E3A31H
Cost [ 36,170 2,224 44,641 3,672 531 2,351 5,639 94,228
Accumulated depreciaton  237E (16,097) (056) (30,383) (1918) (370) (1,999 (3.020) (54,737)
Net carrying amount FHFE 19,073 1,268 14,258 1,754 161 368 2,619 39,491
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

14. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for its medical aesthetic centres,
office premises, car park spaces, warehouses and certain office
equipment used in its operations. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 month to 6 years. Certain
office equipment has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is
individually of low value. There is a lease contract that includes
variable lease payments which are further discussed below.

(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follow:

14, FHE

AEWIERFRN
FEEREBEERSL BARY
¥ FES EEREEMAETHEA
ERBIBHESL - W%fﬂﬁﬂﬁ“ﬁ??
BNT—REAERFE - BETHRAELRME
A 12EASA TR LEEBEEE
B TXE—FAmaEaI2HEN
HHEESL -

(@) FEAEEE
AEENEREEEREERTRA
ZENNT -

Leased

properties

HEWE

HK$’000

FET

As at 1 April 2019 201954 A1 H 60,415
Additions NE 8,309
Lease modification MEBE] (482)
Depreciation charge HEEA (17,932)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 202043 A31 H & 202054 A1 H 50,310
Additions NE 11,441
Termination of leases MExIE (695)
Depreciation charge HEEA (18,329)
Exchange realignment ERRECE (8)
At 31 March 2021 2021 F3 A31H 42,719
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14. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

14.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follow:

HE )
FEBMEREEA (E)
b) HEERE

HEABERAABELRFREEHMT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Carrying amount at the beginning FHRREE
of the year 48,503 56,814
New leases g 11,335 7,543
Accretion of interest recognised FARERF 280
during the year 1,849 2,211
Lease modification HEEE] = (482)
Termination of leases MERIE (640) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions  EAZTE i A AEERITH SRR (2,055) -
Payments ﬁ A (16,499) (17,583)
Exchange realignment b 5 AR (7) -
Carrying amount at the end FAREEEE
of the year 42,486 48,503
Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion IEREE D 25,538 32,813
Current portion mENE D 16,948 15,690
42,486 48,503

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

34 to the financial statements.

As disclosed in note 2.2 to the financial statements, the

Group has early adopted the amendment to HKFRS 16

and applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent

concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain

properties during the year.

HEB BRI EHREM T

34N -

BANE SRR 22T TR - A
EIE%ERmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁw
FA165IEET - WHFERNHBE AR
AETYENHERENMEEER

HERRERAERERTA
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

14. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

14, HE &)

KEBERFEBAE)
()

REZEREREAE NS E
T

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEHNE 1,849 2,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEITE 18,329 17,932
Expense relating to short-term leases KEHE MR TR
and other leases with 2020F3 A31 B Z AR K
remaining lease of terms ended EEEEENHMEERBRX
on or before 31 March 2020 and (FEAYERS RAAERAT)
of low-value assets
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 277 188
Variable lease payments not included in et ATBE & B2 2 AIHAENT
the measurement of lease liabilities (stAERS MEBFRS)
(included in property rentals and
related expenses) 19 58
COVID-19-related rent concessions HEBEHAABOESRE (2,055) -
Termination of leases HEL L 55 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss Bz FER L5 18,474 20,389

The Group leased certain medical aesthetic centre which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on
certain percentage of revenue of the operations being
undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and conditions
as stipulated in the rental agreement. There are also
minimum annual base rental arrangements for these
leases.

The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are
disclosed in notes 29(b) and 31(b) to the financial
statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

15. Goodwill 15. BE
HK$’000
THBT
Cost and carrying amount at 1 April 2019, M2019F4H1H - 2020F3H31H8 -
31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 2020F 4 A1 H&2021FE3 A31HZ
PR K BR TEI (B 4,305

On 26 December 2009, the Group acquired the business of
Health Max Laser and Medical Skin Care Limited (“Health
Max”), a company controlled by Mr. Lai Ying, the sibling of Ms.
Lai Ka Yee Gigi. Health Max was engaged in the provision of
medical aesthetic services.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill of HK$4,305,000 acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the non-surgical medical
aesthetic service cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by senior
management covering a 36-month (2020: 24-month) period.
Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwiill:

o Revenue is estimated based on the business trend in the
industry of medical aesthetic operation, historical average
spending per client and client cover, taking into account
the number of treatment rooms in each medical aesthetic
centre, centre locations, market conditions and economic
outlook.

° Cost of inventories sold is estimated based on the rate of
increase in revenue and the expected market conditions.

° The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the 36-month period is 3% (2020: 3%) for each
reporting period.

o The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the cash-generating unit. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11% (2020:
11%).

R 20094 12 A26 H & 7N & [ Uk B8 5 35
B RBREREEEAR AR (EE]
RER ZARNREREESEXAR
% AZRIIMZ LSRR B TS -

EmEREANR
EBABATEEE 4,305,000 L2 H B
EEFMEESEXAREREELEN
LAETTIREA A, o

MeEEBMAAUE S EETIERER
BENE REERESLAEEERAE
RI361E A (20204 : 2418 A ) i 8 &
ZHeRERAET EEEHAER
BrE AR TXEL T EEEBREE
REeEREFAETHERBENR 2 SE
RIS R

o  WHEARBBEXTLETENER
B BESRBETFIHERR
FEEm (K REBEXTHL
MZEEHRR - ROMLE - TRk
ROERIS ) TR ©

. BHEFERAERMEEEER
BT -

o  HHSEAUNBESREAALR
RE A% HREBHAZ% (20204 :
3%) °

o FIEAZIREABRBAINEE -
I IR E A B AR TE
Rk - M mETRRFTERA MR
R H11% (20204 : 11%) °
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16. Inventories 16. 75
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHEIT
Skin care products EEEMm 11,756 11,447
Consumables and other supplies VB R S H A o 2,398 2,873
14,154 14,320
17. Trade Receivables 17. B SRR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Trade and credit card receivables B MIERRRERER 16,344 7,921
Others H 47 81
16,391 8,002
Impairment A (128) (28)
16,263 7,974

The Group’s trading terms with its clients are mainly on cash
and/or credit card settlement while the trading terms with its

corporate customers are on credit. The credit period is generally 215

2 to 30 days for credit card settlement for the respective
financial institutions and up to 60 days for corporate customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are NEEREEERRE -
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not F A AR AR o
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade W BR 3K

receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

17. Trade Receivables (continuead)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

17.

BRI (&)
RIBERR > B 5 RN ZIREE R
REMBEBEE EOERDONET :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@ARN 15,559 7,886
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 669 70
Over 3 months BE=1EA 35 18
16,263 7,974

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follow:

B RYRFUREE BB ENZEE T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER FHET

At the beginning of the year REH] 28 26
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BB E B (M 6) 100 2
At the end of the year RER 128 28

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

RERE B RYRBBEREETRE
D U EFRHEEEE - BEHXT)
ERpEARUBREANZETE D
EET oM (ARE PR ma i A
Bt E o ZATERBBA KNS

EXREMNBSEHMAISNERETE
S BRI ROR R R 1 TEOR R

EERAZHEER - —KME - WE
S YRR B BB —F - BT A

i BARBRBIITEERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

17. Trade Receivables (Continued) 17. BZRWERF (@)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure TRV FEANEBEE 5 FE UL BR 7R A
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: HEEENEERRHER :
As at 31 March 2021 HN2021$E3AH31H
Past due
B
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
e —z=@EA HBBE=EA st
ECL rate BHEEBEX 0.77% 0.99% 2.78% 0.78%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EEREE (THET) 16,153 202 36 16,391
ECLs (HK$'000) HEHBEEEBR
(F#&T) 125 2 1 128
As at 31 March 2020 7202053831 H
Past due
pnk-i|
1t03 Over
Current months 3 months Total
BIE  —Z==EA ®@B=EA BET
ECL rate BHEEBEX 0.35% 0.62% 0.62% 0.35%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) ARREE (TET) 7,922 61 19 8,002
ECLs (HK$'000) HHEEER
(F&T) 28 - - 28
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18. Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other

18. B IR - HA U ER T K

Assets fth & B
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FET FHET
Prepayments TAfFRIA 4,161 2,217
Contract costs B HIBAR (@) 3,224 2,912
Deposits by e 23,120 11,558
Deposits paid for the purchase BEYE  WENMLREER
of items of property, plant ME ke
and equipment 119 4,130
Other receivables Hfth e UL BR FR 162 864
30,786 21,681
Analysed into: DR
Non-current portion JERENE 5,820 9,540
Current portion meE s 24,966 12,141
30,786 21,681

Financial assets included in the above balances relate to

deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history

of default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2021 and

2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Note:

(@

Contract costs

The contract costs primarily related to the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer, which represent sales commission and bonuses
paid or payable to doctors and staff, that are recognised as contract costs
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the contract liabilities to
which they relate is recognised as revenue.

Management expects that incremental costs paid to doctors and staff as a
result of obtaining prepaid packages are recoverable. The Group has
therefore capitalised these costs as contract costs in the amount of
HK$3,224,000 (2020: HK$2,912,000) at 31 March 2021.

Contract costs are amortised when the related revenue is recognised.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the amount of amortisation was
HK$6,316,000 (2020: HK$6,790,000) and no impairment loss on contract
costs was made.

ETA LS T S RNE E W RITAE
rREgNRe RERERREBHS
B o }A2021 F 20209 3 A 31 H - 18
BB AT R E -

Wi -

(@)

BHIBA
TEERSEFANEERA(ANHEMRS
REMNSENBERE TNEA)ERNE
HDRAREA BB KRR BB LKA -
ZERARERBN A OREER RSN
MR P RER

EREEY AESEMNERMINEER
BIMBERARTTYHE - Bt - AEBERB
20213 A31 B #5 B B A A L& KK K
3,224,000 7T (20204 : 2,912,000 75 ) 77

ERBAWER - SORAESHE - BHE
2021F3A3IA EFE BHEHL2HER
6,316,000 7T (2020 4F : 6,790,000 7T.) *
WA DR AT RIEFIE °
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19. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Time  19. R4 KIE&EE WA R B HKH#

Deposits EHIFER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FAT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE 23,255 7,321
Time deposits TEHTFR 195,864 205,466
219,119 212,787
Less: Pledged time deposits, pledged for & : BHER R EEEEmMER
credit card facilities BB IR E BB K (57,346) (65,460)
Cash and cash equivalents e RIREEEY 161,773 157,327
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily RITRSIEZHRTHERFETEMNZ
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods A EBEF B - FHAGRIVIEASE
of between 1 month and 12 months depending on the MEREFRR AR — 2+ _EAHT
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at FHEIEEL - WiRS 8 5F B 17 3 2 Bk
the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances and time AE o RITEBR N EBFERIFEAR
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent HEENCBREERTMNIRIT -
history of default.
20. Trade Payables 20. B ENER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Third party suppliers F=HHEY 2,076 338
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBEHR BEHENERIZEZAH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follow: SFTEMBRE ST
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Within 1 month 1{E A A 2,076 338
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and generally have BIRMNBERTE  FTHEEZH K
an average settlement term of 30 days. #3808 o
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HE2021F3A31HILFE

21. Other Payables and Accruals

21, Hft iR Est &2 M

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHIT

Other payables and accruals EEMERER R EREA 6,224 5,837
Receipts in advance TEWRIE 392 230
6,616 6,067

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of 1 to 3 months.

HpEMNERIE  FOFHR—=

=f@A -
22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue 22. @B ERELEW R
2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FET FH&T
Deferred revenue RIEW z= 13,942 13,163
Contract liabilities AHafmE (@) 154,240 122,512
168,182 135,675
Note: st -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follow: (@ AHBEEBOT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Advances received from customers BMEFEF
Provision of medical aesthetic services RHEBEEERRE 154,205 122,323
Sale of skin care products HEEEESR 35 189
Total contract liabilities wEHAaE 154,240 122,512

Contract liabilities include advances received from customers to deliver
skin care products and render medical aesthetic services. The increase in
contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to decrease in treatment
sessions performed during the pandemic. The carrying amount of contract
liabilities represented the amount of the transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period and are expected to be
recognised as revenue within the service periods normally ranging from 3
months to 18 months from the date of purchase. In the opinion of the
Directors, the actual outcome may be different from the amounts
estimated and will be subject to the customers’ actual utilisation pattern
and prevailing laws and regulations, taking into account of specific market
conditions.

BHNERBEEARNESERRIEHRESSE
AR T WERE B P BK - 1R 2021 FRIR K
BEENTEBRNERBRRETORIEZ
RIEBAAE - EHNEENREE/SDILE
MBEOEE(NRSHRHREITRBD
AET)INZSERLHE  BHHRREH
(=N FEBEAHEAEAZ18EA)
NER RS - EERA - EHRBENT
Rk BERERAEEMGFSETR AR
FEPHEREBERX  URBAITERRS
BITE
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22. Contract Liabilities and Deferred Revenue
(Continued)

22. BXBENMELEW S (@)

Note: (Continued) Bzt - (88)

(@) (Continued) @ ()
The movements in contract liabilities are as follow: BHBENEFHIT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
At the beginning of the year REH] 122,512 95,859
Receipts from sales of one-off treatments HE—IRIEERE REE
and treatment packages, net FriSIEF 88 140,725 189,480

Revenue recognised upon the provision of services e AR 1% B MRS (108,417) (156,601)
Revenue recognised upon the sales of products HEEMEBEBRREGE (580) (6,226)
At the end of the year RER 154,240 122,512

23. Provision for Reinstatement Costs
The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of
dismantling and removing the leasehold improvements and
restoring the leased premises which they are currently located
back to their original state of condition if and when the Group
vacates these leased premises.

23. (B1ERA TG
EERAREETEBHFDRERE
EYEREURMAERBY ZZHE
YRR EERBANAENEENEER
HAHRIR BB AN A S B B B R A o

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At the beginning of the year REF] 5,910 5,144
Additional provisions FBINEHE 106 766
Amounts utilised during the year FABEANE (419) -
At the end of the year RER 5,597 5,910
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Analysed into: DA
Non-current portion EMBNEL S 5,114 4,085
Current portion mEE s 483 1,825
5,597 5,910
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24. Deferred Tax 24, REFIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the B EERBBERFEAMEZNT

year are as follow:

Deferred tax assets FEEBIEEE
Depreciation Losses
in excess available

of related  for offsetting
depreciation against future

allowance taxable profits Others Total
o AR 8
BEARTE KRRBERD
BENRTE BANEE Hit wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL T FTHEL FHL
At 1 April 2019 N2019F4 A1H 685 1,518 4 2,207
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FREA/ (B E) BEN
to profit or loss during RIEHA (B35 10)
the year (note 10) 64 912 4) q72
At 31 March 2020 and R2020E3 A31 H R
1 April 2020 20204 A1H 749 2,430 - 3,179
Deferred tax credited FRFABER
to profit or loss during EERIE (3 10)
the year (note 10) 816 3,027 14 3,857
At 31 March 2021 Moo E3F31 B 1,565 5,457 14 7,036
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued)

24, IRIEFLIA (%)

Deferred tax liabilities ELEBBEEE
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related
depreciation
HBHAERETE
WITERE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 4 A1 H 2,065
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FREFABRAELRIE
during the year (note 10) (FF5E10) (471)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R2020F3 A31 B &
20204 A1 H 1,594
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHIk B BEMIELERE
during the year (note 10) (M7E10) 231
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31H 1,825
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24. Deferred Tax (Continued) 24, IRIETRIE ()
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and BEREHR ETEEHRBEENEE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of ERGEMBERARIEE U TN ELAE
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B SEHREBNMETRIELTERIEL
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: BT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE B AR RFER R
in the consolidated statement of RIERIB A ERE
financial position 6,815 3,179
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE BRI R FER Y
in the consolidated statement of ELEHIEBEFE
financial position (1,604) (1,594)
5,211 1,585
At 31 March 2021, the Group had tax losses arising in Hong MR2021E3A31H KREBRREBESL
Kong of HK$33,075,000 (2020: HK$14,740,000), subject to the B T B 833,075,000 JT (20204 :
agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department, that 14,740,000 7T) - HARFBETHBEBA
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable ZonEBHAUKHEESAEEEEN
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. NARRIRERBLRA o
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24.

25.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, deferred tax assets had not been
recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$11,000 as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. In addition, the Group had
deductible temporary differences of HK$21,000 for which
deferred tax assets had not been recognised. The related tax

effects are as follow:

24. IRIEFLIA (48)

P 20203 A31H * ARERETKA
BY HH ER AT Eh A A 7% RS 1R 1K BE ) FE AR T
A - #R A A BEAT TR B8 11,000 78 TTERR
EERRIEEEE o Boh -
RELEHBEEMN AR EREERE
21,00087T © HHAMBTZ 20T -

REB A AR

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Tax losses HIaEE = 2
Deductible temporary differences AT = KR - 3
- 5
Share Capital 25. &7
Shares 4
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000 iz & i H{E
HK$0.01 each 0.01BTH &L 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
400,000,000 ordinary shares of 400,000,000 & & A& E &
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT EmAk 4,000 4,000

These was no movement in the Company’s share capital during

the year.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in

note 26 to the financial statements.

B
BRARNARBREENFBHNH

MR EE26A ©
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26. Share Option Scheme 26. BEARIERTE
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) AN A HIET — I8 B AT 2I( 7% 5t

for the purpose of attracting and retaining the best available

gl 5ERSIRBREREHBAL I

personnel, providing additional incentive to eligible participants,
and promoting the success of the business of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
Directors, including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, and any consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners and service providers of any member of the Group.
The Scheme was approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 19 December 2016 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
maximum number of shares available for issue was 40,000,000,
representing 10% of the shares of the Company in issue.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such
date on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
Directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the Directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event not exceeding
10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 7 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.0.

AARKEEGER2EE RN R A
KA AR B EBAIL S -

:ﬁ%zéé%/A% EARARES
(BREBYIENTES AEEHME
B AEBEEMKESNEMARAL
B Dl AR ftEl R/
B RBP HERBUERRBHEER) - %
FEIE R 2016F 12 A 19 H E AR AR
Rt RN MR BTREREET
Oh - wxEt Bl RZ BRI 10FERBAR
jjo

RZEFERRELEZH @ &o A2
17 i% 17 8 £ /& 40,000,000 f% EKA =
EETIRMEI10% °

Bu2EEQEM1I2EABBEZRE
B8 RIBZERAAREMEMBE
PRt Bl 2 BRI TR - B3
ThBTFERITZEODBERZTHEEB
ARRREBHITRODBEZ 1% °

BIREAREBEZAE 2GR REER
BB R REEER NEREE R
Z & A R A HARE 1A 2 B A A B
T YREEREBRERAEET
ZEBEBEE R EAERRER  MER
EEERT - AREBEREE R (MR H
BREs2OEER AARERLE
BREZXE R) BT AEIB10F

REOBRENENANRLEBENAR
H(BRER)BLARERN - ZEHBYH
FER —DBRENENEER1.08
JC °©
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20.

27.

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Directors provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (j)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer; (i)
the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5
trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and {iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
to any eligible participant under the scheme (2020: Nil).

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein during the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 89 of the
financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserves arising from the
reorganisation of the Group in connection with the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the merger reserve was reclassified to retained
profits upon the dissolution of the subsidiary involved in the
reorganisation.
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28. Related Party Transactions

29.

(@)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had no
material transactions with related parties during the year
(2020: Nil).

EZpE

(@)

RS

RS B BR A 5 BT Y
AR5 RSN AEBRE PER
T B AR 5 (2020%F ¢ 48) -

(o) Compensation of key management personnel of the by AEEFEEEABNF (B
Group, including Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in BT TSR R MRS T BB E 5 B
note 8 to the financial statements, is as follow: NN

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Fees we 350 -

Short term employee benefits REEERA 7,163 6,000

Post-employment benefits BER 2R A 35 18

7,548 6,018

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash  IREREMERNTE

Flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions (@ FE}BREXRH

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group entered
into rental agreements in respect of its office premises.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$11,335,000
(2020: HK$7,543,000) were recognised in respect of
lease arrangements for leased properties. Pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the rental agreements, the Group
is required to restore the sites to the conditions as
stipulated in the rental agreements. Accordingly, the
Group had also accrued and capitalised the estimated
restoration cost of HK$106,000 (2020: HK$766,000)
when such obligations arose.

REE2021F3A31HIEFE
mﬁl?ﬁﬁfbﬂ“*%%ﬁﬂﬂijﬁ

c MM EWMENEELTHERN
ﬁﬁﬁﬁé;‘é&%ﬂ‘aafﬁ%
11,335,000 7t (20204 :
7,543,000 70) - IRIEHAE R HEM
R RIEH  NEBEKZEIST
BEEZHEBZRTHMRR - B
It - REBINE REF R E ML A
EEBEEBEITNBERK
106,0007%8 7T (20204 : 766,0007%
TT) e
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows (Continued)

29. IRERERMERM T (@)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RETHELNERSEH
activities
2021 2021 F

Lease liabilities

HEEE

HK$’000

FET

At 1 April 2020 20204 A1 H 48,503

Changes from financing cash flows BMERESRELRD (14,650)

New leases FHE 11,335

Termination of leases ME&IE (640)

Finance costs BTSN 1,849
Interest paid classified as DERKERERENDHHE

operating cash flow (1,849)

COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ ERE A A BRI TE £ 7 % (2,055)

Exchange realignment M 5, B (7)

At 31 March 2021 R2021 93 A31H 42,486

2020

2020 &

Lease liabilities

HEBE

HK$’'000

FA&T

At 1 April 2019 201954 A1 R 56,814

Changes from financing cash flows BRERSREE (15,372)
New leases s 7,543

Lease modification MEER (482)
Finance costs IR IDN 2,21

Interest paid classified as DEAKERESREMENTE

operating cash flow (2,211)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 48,503

154 MIRICOR ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2021



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

30. Pledge of Assets 30. EEEH
Details of the Group’s credit card facilities granted by financial HEemEER T AEENER<EER
institutions, which are secured by the assets of the Group, are EVEAEREEFEERT  BHEEEEH
included in note 19 to the financial statements. R FEERT I FE19 ©
31. Commitments 31, AHE
(@  The Group had the following capital commitments at the @@ AEBRBREEREUTHERE
end of the reporting period: z:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BEET4) - BRI -
Property, plant and equipment Y = 488
()  The Group had various lease contracts that had not yet () M2020F3H31H AEEMNZ
commenced as at 31 March 2020. The future lease MEEEH ARG - ZFER—F
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts were AE| BTN EEETE E & LR R 2R
HK$803,000 due within one year, and HK$876,000 due TR E 3 A803,000 T + RE =
in the second to fifth years, inclusive. EZERF (BEEREMSE) BHER

#%876,0008 7T °

32. Financial Instruments by Category 32. EEE TN T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RRERRSEeRTANEDERNT -

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follow:

Financial assets cREE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Financial assets at amortised cost: TR AT ENSMERE ¢
Trade receivables B SRR 16,263 7,974
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5+ AFENI3IE - Efth fE UL BR 3%
other receivables and other assets LREMEENSREE 22,336 12,422
Pledged time deposits [z iR YER 57,346 55,460
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR EEY 161,773 157,327
257,718 233,183

2021 F3h / SYEREEEFR AT 155



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

32. Financial Instruments by Category (Continued) 32. IREBE TR T A @

Financial liabilities =R

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHEIT

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEK AT ENEREE
Trade payables B S EMERER 2,076 338

Financial liabilities included in other sFAEMDERBRR N B E
payables and accruals HEFAaRE 3,123 2,899
Lease liabilities HEBE 42,486 48,503
47,685 51,740

33. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial ~ 33. @@ TE/AFEL A FESF
Instruments &
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial AEESHTANREBELRAFE(TE
instruments, other than those carrying amounts that reasonably EZERAEHEATESAERAEN SR

approximate to fair values, are as follow: TE)WT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE A¥E
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FExT FETT
Financial assets ERMEE
Deposits, non-current portion 4% » ERENEL D 5,701 5,410 5,043 4,564

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, the current portion of financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
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33.

34.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (Continued)

The fair values of non-current portion of deposits are estimated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities.

Fair value hierarchy

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no financial
assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Regarding the assets and liabilities for which fair values are
disclosed, the fair value measurement of the non-current
portion of deposits was classified as Level 2. During the year,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise pledged
time deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and lease
liabilities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Credit risk
Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 March. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

33.

34.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021

34. cRiEMEIEEENREE &)

EERk (&)
BAEKREERE(E)
R2021F3A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A&
FEF#B 2HRNEERS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
BT B N b #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET TER TERT THERT
Trade receivables® B P RRYR R - - - 16,391 16,391
Financial assets included in STATBIFRE -
prepayments, other receivables  E i FEUTBR 2 &
and other assets HEER
PRAE
— Normal ** — EE* 22,336 - - - 22,336
Pledged time deposits BB THER
— Not yet past due — MR 57,346 - - - 57,346
Cash and cash equivalents BERBELEEY
— Not yet past due — HABH 161,773 - - - 161,773
241,455 - - 16,391 257,846
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B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
As at 31 March 2020

34. cRiEMEIEE ENREE (&)

EERk (&)
BAERREERE(E)
MR2020F3 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12 8 A8
FEE#E 2HEHREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-TRE FRRE E=RE BIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT TET THET FAT
Trade receivables” B HRER - - - 8,002 8,002
Financial assets included in BUNSERECER
prepayments, other receivables  E- T BE T &
and other assets Hith & EwH)
PREE
— Normal ** — FE* 12,422 - - - 12,422
Pledged time deposits EERERER
— Not yet past due — AR 55,460 - - - 55,460
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREEED
— Not yet past due — HABH 157,327 - - - 157,327
225,209 - - 8002 233211

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 17 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

MASEERERAHOENE SRR
s ABEEMESERNERNSBRE

FRE17 IR -

SHATAENFUR - A b USRS R A M EER
CREERROHK LT EEHERELEY)
HHERARNEERR A REEN - 8
CREENEEERRARIES] BRI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 34. EEREIEBZRNMBUR @)
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk REESERE
In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and BEBBRHESREM  NEBEEENR
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed 2 IR AT ENRENIRESEEY
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations K AAREBRHEEREESITHF
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group KRS RENSNTE KEETHE
regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has BETEBESRNAERE TR E
adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations. BRETHBEEE -
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the RIREBAR  REBEREITHERITH
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual RSB ENDEERNT
undiscounted payments, was as follow:
2021 2021 4
Within
1 year or 1to5
on demand years Total
-£R
RIRER —-ZEHE Fohy
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TER TER
Trade payables EE AN 2,076 - 2,076
Financial liabilities included in AR MR RI K
other payables and accruals EFERANSREAE 3,123 - 3,123
Lease liabilities HEGE 18,148 26,568 44,716
23,347 26,568 49,915
2020 2020 F
Within
1 year or 1tob
on demand years Total
—R
IR EK —E0fF FCEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FTAET
Trade payables 2 HENERN 338 - 338
Financial liabilities included in S A A FE T BR TR R
other payables and accruals EAERNERAE 2,899 - 2,899
Lease liabilities HEBE 17,036 34,869 51,905
20,273 34,869 55,142
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR AR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

34. Financial Risk Management Objectives and SREREEEERBE )

Policies (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to the shareholders, return capital to the shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of the
shareholders’ equity.

EXERE
AEEERNEENTIZERARERE
BRELLENENAEFRENEARL
T AXFHEEBRAGERANRRE
=0

zr'i% BERBELERRE(CRBAEER

REHEERABREERNERE - B
H%ﬂﬁé% B AEEgRAERR
RIS - MR R EARE R
REITHIR D - AEEBAEETFERIN
EPEARBNR - REE2021F3A31 B X
2020F3AB31HILFE EAEEMNE
= BeR j@/}uﬂ‘&:[ﬁ “““““ £ o

AEBEABERRERAAAKED ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3 A31 HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35. 2K & 2 B i& ik R 3=

Information about the statement of financial position of the

ARBRIERRO B BN KR E R N

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follow: T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE = -
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEA 3R T8 & E A JlE U BR 3R 230 832
Pledged time deposits B2 E BT K 53,671 52,390
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 123,503 128,828
Total current assets MEEELE 177,404 182,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES G =R
Accruals fEFTE A 191 -
Due to subsidiaries AN NG E ] 114,823 122,068
Tax payable FERTER IR = 12
Total current liabilities mEAGEEE 115,014 122,080
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 62,390 59,970
Net assets EEFE 62,390 59,970
EQUITY Ea
Issued capital BEITIRA 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note (a)) it (B () 58,390 55,970
Total equity EmiRE 62,390 59,970
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
BHZE2021F3A31HIEFE

35. Statement of Financial Position of the Company  35.

RAR) 2GR ()

(Continued)
Note: BfsT -
(@) A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follow: (@) AATIEEOBRENT -
Share
premium Accumulated Total
account losses equity
R A7 5 E R Sy i EXAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2019 H2019F4 A1 8 67,788 (15,308) 52,480
Profit for the year and total comprehensive — FEE%FI R EE 2 EWZS LT
income for the year - 3,490 3,490
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R 202043 431 B &
202044 B1H 67,788 (11,818) 55,970
Profit for the year and total comprehensive — FEE 5% FI R EE 2 EW LR
income for the year - 2,420 2,420
At 31 March 2021 R202143 831 A 67,788 (9,398) 58,390

36. Events after the Reporting period

37.

On 20 May 2021, the Company, as lessee, and The Peninsula
Hotel Limited, as lessor, entered into the lease agreement in
respect of the lease of the whole 16th Floor, The Peninsula
Office Tower, which shall commence from 1 August 2021 and
expire on 31 July 2027 (both days inclusive). The Company
plans to use this premises as medical aesthetic centre and for
the sale of skin care products.

On 21 May 2021, the Company, as lessee, and New World
Tower Company Limited, as lessor, entered into the lease
agreements in respect of the lease of the 10th Floor and 11th
Floor of New World Tower I, which commenced from 22 May
2021 and expire on 15 November 2024 (both days inclusive),
and shall commence from 16 November 2021 and expire on 15
November 2024 (both days inclusive), respectively. The
Company plans to use these premises as medical aesthetic
centres.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of Directors on 18 June 2021.

36. WEHIREIR

37.

72021F5 8208 + AAR(EAEBEA)
HEYEREBRAT(EALHAA) A
EXERAKREICEEZEILHER
& HEHA2021F8 A1 HE2027F
TANB(BEEEMB)EM > AAF
SRS EREEEEARLREE
EEER

2021F58218 « AARI(EAEFEA)
£ New World Tower Company Limited
(EREBA)RBEEFHERRKE =10
BERNMEBTLHEERR  HEHRSAH
20215 A22 HE 2024511 A15H(E
FEREMB)Em - AK&B2021F11 A
16HE2024F 11 A15H(BEEERA)
B e RARIF B ZEMERIEBR
ERHL o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHBEREE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANHLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT TFHT FHT FHET

RESULTS ES
Revenue Wz 128,871 176,529 154,695 127,213 100,104
Profit/(loss) before tax B AR (EE) (16,217) 15,669 26,389 31,457 3,509
Income tax expense/(credit) PSRRI (%) 3,564 (2,113) (4,591) (4,944) (3,450)
Profit/(loss) for the year and N A &IHEA AJE(G

total comprehensive FEEHN(HBE)

income/(loss) for the year MEEE@

attributable to owners Wak,/ (E518) 58

of the Company (12,653) 13,556 21,798 26,513 59

As at 31 March
R3AS31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$ 000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHIT FHIT FHIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BB E 372,135 357,251 281,425 223,371 170,623
Total liabilities FEN=L (226,561) (199,020) (139,699) (106,268) (80,033)
Equity attributable to owners  ZANA &I EEA A FE(L

of the Company W 145,574 158,231 141,726 117,103 90,590
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